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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

For and on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors’), | would like to present to shareholders the financial
results of Simsen International Corporation Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the
year ended 30 April 2010.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year under review, the Group recorded a minimal profit
from continuing operations as compared to last year loss of
approximately HK$179,794,000, showing a significant
improvement in operating result as compared to last year. The
Group’s turnover increased by 1,513% from approximately
HK$13,112,000 in last year to approximately HK$211,527,000
in current year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Due to the gradual recovery in the global and Hong Kong
economies and the recent upturn in financial market, the overall
performance of the Group’s results for the year ended 30 April
2010 was significantly improved as compared with the last
financial year, however it was still not satisfactory.

Following the mandatory unconditional cash offer by Super
Century Investments Limited (“Super Century”) completed in April
2010, Super Century became the controlling shareholder of the
Company holding approximately 60.10% equity interests in the
Company. The new Board has been formed in April 2010 and
has conducted a review on the financial position and operations
of the Group and in the process of formulating long-term business
plans and strategy of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN’s STATEMENT
EREMRE

SECURITIES

The securities segment comprises broking and dealing of
securities, futures and options contracts, the provision of margin
financing, advisory on corporate finance, asset management and
insurance consultancy services, and results of investment holding
and proprietary trading of securities. Revenue from the securities
segment was approximately HK$153,457,000 for the year under
review (2009: negative revenue of approximately HK$1,429,000),
the improvement in revenue was mainly due to the increase in
broking income by 75% as compared to last year.

BULLION

The bullion segment comprises broking and dealing of bullion
contracts, which recorded a revenue and a gain of approximately
HK$38,323,000 and approximately HK$14,582,000 respectively
for the year under review (2009: revenue of approximately
HK$7,013,000 and loss of HK$6,510,000).

FOREX

The forex segment comprises broking and dealing of forex
contracts, which recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$13,451,000 and a gain of approximately HK$3,224,000
respectively for the year under review (2009:
approximately HK$1,937,000 and loss of approximately
HK$8,072,000).

revenue of

TRADING

The Group discontinued its trading business comprises the
shipment sales of motor vehicles, spare parts, accessories and
related products since September 2009, which recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$3,604,000 and a loss of
approximately HK$1,540,000 for the year under review (2009:
revenue of approximately HK$18,705,000 and loss of
approximately HK$33,251,000).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

CORPORATE AND OTHERS

The corporate and others segment comprises loan financing, the
provision of management and consultancy services, and other
services together with corporate income and expense items.
Revenue generated from corporate and others segment was
approximately HK$6,296,000 for the year under review as
compared with approximately HK$5,591,000 in 2009,
representing a slight increase of about 12.61%. The loss for the
year amounted to HK$3,552,000 (2009: loss of approximately
HK$6,880,000).

PROSPECTS

The major global economies and industries has been continued
to improve modestly in varying degree, the business opportunities
to Hong Kong, being backed by China, is increasingly promising.
In light of this, and with the change of controlling shareholders,
the group is re-organized and in the process of reinforcing its
solid foundation of existing business including the securities
brokerage, bullion, foreign exchange, futures, etc. We are also
working on a longer term strategic plan to widen our product
range, explore the new business potential deriving from the
booming China economy and penetrate new market segments
so as to boost up our revenue.

APPRECIATION

| wish to express my sincere appreciation to all the staff of the
Group for their continuing dedication and the enduring support.

Sun Da Rui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 August 2010

EEWRE

¥R HAM

TEREMERBEERRE  BRHEEK
BEMERY - EWZIEE REMRS - KE
BFE REPEREMEBRZBALNE
6,296,000/ 7T © £ = FZ N,F 495,591,000
BT EF4912.61% - REEEIE
3,552,000 T (2T NF : FEY
6,880,000/ 7T) °

=

]

il

ERIBEEBARTEENARE L&
BMRE  BAEZEHEASSETE - IR
FaseiE - BENIL - M EEAARR IR E
B AEEETEE  VTEEEHEBRAER
ZRREEM  BEESFLL B INER
HESE - AEBETEEETRIIRIKS
ARFEEmEEs - femaEiEE Rz PEK
R EEERE N EAFTTISOR - AR
A e

NS &1
RABUBEHAEBEZBE T B HTRRE
F T REBUA RO -

EY

BAE

78 —E-TF/\A-+@0EA



Simsen International Corporation Limited X717 B & (25%) AR A 7

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWIL R DT

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 April 2010, the Group had secured bank loans and bank
overdrafts of approximately HK$148,694,000 and approximately
HK$1,583,000 bearing interest range from 0.6% to 6.0% per
annum and repayable within 5 years and on demand respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents totalling approximately
HK$45,528,000 as at 30 April 2010 (30 April 2009: approximately
HK$58,314,000). As at 30 April 2010, the current ratio of the
Group was approximately 129% and the net current assets were
approximately HK$133,650,000. The Group’s gearing ratio, which
was derived by dividing the aggregate amount of bank borrowings
and other interest-bearing loan by the amount of shareholder’s
equity, was approximately 72%.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 30 July 2009, Manvin Services Limited (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company), Sino Harvest Investments
Holdings Limited, the Company and Ms. Yeung So Mui entered
into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which Manvin
Services Limited acquired 49% of the entire issued share capital
and 49% of the shareholder’s loan of Sun Finance Company
Limited for a total consideration of HK$130,000,000. Details of
the above acquisition were set out in the circular of the Company
dated 25 August 2009.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 1 September 2009, Firstmount International Limited (a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Ms. Lu Sheng
Ying entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which Firstmount International Limited disposed of its 87.01%
entire issued share capital of Think Right Limited to Ms. Lu Sheng
Ying for a consideration of HK$70,000,000. Details of the above
disposal were set out in the circular of the Company dated 23
October 2009.

On 27 November 2009, Tuxedo Enterprises Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and iWin Limited
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
Tuxedo Enterprises Limited disposed of its entire issued share
capital of Cheung’s Gold Traders Limited to iWin Limited for a
consideration of HK$5,000,000. Details of the above disposal
were set out in the circular of the Company dated 15 January
2010.

On 27 November 2009, Linewear Assets Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Tracing Paper
International Limited entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which Linewear Assets Limited disposed of its entire
issued share capital of Head & Shoulders Securities Limited to
Tracing Paper International Limited, for a consideration of
HK$31,000,000. Details of the above disposal were set out in
the circular of the Company dated 15 January 2010.

Save as disclosed above, during the year under review, the Group
made no significant investment nor had it made any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and associates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIEEmA R o
CURRENCY STRUCTURE EiiE

As at 30 April 2010, the Group has the following assets and W-Z—ZFMA=+H  KEEHHE 5
liabilities denominated in foreign currency: DONESTECEERARE -

Foreign Currency 30 April 2010

—ET-ZF

his MA=+H

'000

FT

Interests in associates N RMBA R # 739

Accounts receivable JEWLBR SR UsD %7t 21
Prepayments, deposits FENRIE - 5@

and other receivables Ko H At & 45 BR 3K RMB A R 20

Cash and cash equivalents He kRS EFEEIEE RMB AR 4

Other payables and accruals HihENERRNREER RMB A R ®)

No hedging for non-Hong Kong dollars assets or investment has R I7 £ 5t IE 8 T & E s iR B HEITH I o
been made during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 April 2010, the bank overdraft, total bank loans and
obligations under finance leases amounted to approximately
HK$1,583,000, HK$148,694,000 and HK$926,000 respectively,
which were secured by the properties and pledged time deposits
held by the Group, a charge over securities under initial public
offering and margin deposit as required for initial public offering
as at 30 April 2010 and the leased assets acquired under the
finance leases.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 April 2010, the Group employed a total of about 215
employees, as compared to 213 employees in 2009. The Group
recruits and promotes individuals based on merit and their
development potentials for the positions offered. When
formulating staff remuneration and benefit policies, primary
considerations are given to their performance and prevailing salary
levels in the market. Benefits provided to the employees by the
Group include training, mandatory provident fund and medical
coverage.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 30 April
2010.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had commitments in respect of its net long positions
of bullion contracts and forex contracts amounting to
approximately HK$120,700,000 and approximately
HK$150,935,000 respectively undertaken in the ordinary course
of business existing at 30 April 2010.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other
significant commitments as at 30 April 2010.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BN 2

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 18 August 2010, Manvin Services Limited (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and Checkmate Advisors
Limited entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which Manvin Services Limited disposed of its 49% entire
issued share capital of Sun Finance Company Limited to
Checkmate Advisors Limited for a consideration of
HK$9,300,000. Details of the above disposal were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 18 and 19 August 2010.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance within a sensible framework with an
emphasis on the principles of transparency, accountability and
independence. The Board believes that good corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). During the year ended 30 April
2010, the Company was in compliance with the code provisions
set out in the CG Code except for the deviations from code
provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the
responsibilities between chairman and chief executive officer
should be divided. Following the resignation of Mr. Haywood
Cheung (the former Chairman) and Mr. Chan Hok Ching (the
former Acting Managing Director) on 23 April 2010, Mr. Sun Da
Rui was appointed as the Chairman of the Company and the
Company has not appointed a chief executive officer. The roles
and functions of the chief executive officer have been performed
by Mr. Sun Da Rui and Mr. Peng Xiaodong, both are executive
Directors of the Company, collectively. The Board believes that
such arrangement is for the benefits of the Group as it enables
the two directors with different expertise to make contribution to
the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

J/J'_\%Hv #& =]

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term. The former
independent non-executive Directors of the Company who
resigned on 23 April 2010 were not appointed for a specific term
but they are subject to the provision for retirement by rotation
under the Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”).

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transaction. Having made
specific enquiry with all Directors, the Board has confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 30 April 2010.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management of the
Company'’s business and affairs with the objective of enhancing
shareholders’ value, including setting and approving the Group’s
strategic direction and other important matters such as interim
and annual results, dividends, annual financial budgets, business
and operation plans etc., while delegating day-to-day operations
of the Group to the management. Besides, each member of the
Board is expected to make a full and active contribution to the
Board’s affairs and to ensure that the Board acts in the best
interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The management and control of the business of the Company
are vested in the Board. It is the duty of the Board to establish
policies, strategies and plans, and to provide leadership in the
attainment of the objective of creating value to shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The current Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities
to the operational committee of the Company (the “Operational
Committee”). These responsibilities include the implementation
of decisions of the Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-
to-day operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the
Board, formulating and monitoring the production and operation
plans and budgets, and supervising and monitoring the control
systems.

The Board currently comprises of a total of 5 Directors, including
2 executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors,
whose biographies are set out on pages 29 to 34 of this annual
report.

Mr. Zhu Chengwu and Mr. Li Haifeng, the independent non-
executive Directors, were appointed for an initial term of two years
commenced on 23 April 2010, and Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael,
an independent non-executive Director, was appointed for an
initial term of two years commenced on 13 August 2010. The
above independent non-executive Directors are subject to
retirement at the first general meeting of the Company after their
appointment, and thereafter subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Bye-Laws.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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During the year ended 30 April 2010, the Board held 10 Board REE-_ZT—ZTFMNA=+HIFERN > &
meetings. Individual attendance of each Director, on a named =& %TTT‘I‘Aﬁ%Q@% EESEHRFE
basis, at the Board meetings is as follows: eeE BN GRERERE) WOT
Number of
meetings attended
Name of Director EEng R
Executive Directors HITEFE
— Mr. Sun Da Rui* (Chairman) -FERERE(FE) -
— Mr. Peng Xiaodong* -WERR A -
- Mr. Haywood Cheung* - R{BER A A 8/10
— Mr. Chan Hok Ching* - PR F LA 10/10
— Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai, Stanley* - REELE 10/10
- Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley* - BRI S A 7/10
- Dr. Chang Si-Chung* - RiHRIFE L 5/10
Non-executive Director FHITEE
- Mr. Ma Wei# - BE A 3/6
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE
— Mr. Zhu Chengwu* - RAR K& -
— Mr. Li Haifeng* - g A -
— Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael* - BEUM -
— Mr. Cao Kuangyu** - ER T A -
— Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond* -FREa L 8/10
— Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin? -REREE 7/10
— Mr. Wong Yu Choi# - EmHRM & 7/10

* These Directors were appointed on 23 April 2010, and no meeting ~ * ZEEFRN _TTFWNA-_T=RHEZ

was held after their appointment. - RAESEZEBRUERITEE
** Mr. Cao was appointed on 23 April 2010 and resigned on 3 June ** EBELER - T-—TEPPA -+ =-—HEZT
2010, and no meeting was held during his term of appointment. WH—ZZFE—ZFNAZHEE  REEZ
FEARWEmRITEH -

#  These Directors resigned on 23 April 2010, and 10 meetings were  # FZSEBEERN T ZFMNA -+ =HE
held before their resignation. £ RESEHENETT HAEH -

##  Mr. Ma was appointed on 1 September 2009 and resigned on  ## BAEER_ZZNFALA—BEZTIR
23 April 2010, and 6 meetings were held during his term of ZEEFENAZT=HEE  RNEEE
appointment. FHRBITT NAEHE o

+ Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael was appointed on 13 August 2010.  + BEXNEER—ZE—ZEFNA+=-HE
ffo
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The Company had received confirmation of independence from
the three independent non-executive Directors in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has assessed independence of the three independent
non-executive Directors and concluded that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent within the definition of the
Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has any financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with the others.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates the responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer should be divided.
Following the resignation of Mr. Haywood Cheung (the former
Chairman) and Mr. Chan Hok Ching (the former Acting Managing
Director) on 23 April 2010, Mr. Sun Da Rui was appointed as the
Chairman of the Company and the Company has not appointed a
chief executive officer. The roles and functions of the chief executive
officer have been performed by Mr. Sun Da Rui and Mr. Peng
Xiaodong, both are executive Directors of the Company, collectively.
The Board believes that such arrangement is for the benefits of the
Group as it enables the two Directors with different expertise to
make contributions to the Group.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Since the full Board will be involved in the removal and
appointment of Directors, the Company has not established a
nomination committee. The Board will, based on its own need,
adopt criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity and
commitment when selecting and appointing directors.

J/J'_\%Hv #& =]

ARRARCERE=FLBUIFNTEERIE LT
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ESEECU-RBUFNTES 2B IR
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EEZRABMETMAMSE - X5 FkEM
BEXHEARE -

EERTHAR

EEERTAFAETRIESRERRD
TRETRARZEE - BEREREE
(FIEE) RRBELLE (AIBFREFRKTE)
R-ZT-TFHUA -+ =HBFER - RKE
TEERRERARRERE  MARRHAKRE
EITHBARE, - ITHARE 2 S M B IR K
ERENEZBERELE (GRARBNITESR)
HRAET - EFERR  HREELHEE
MEEZNETNAEXEMBARASEELE
Bl S AREEAERF

BEER®

REEe2RBKERAR2ERLREEE
B HARRLEKIIEREZES - EFE
REAGFZHENZIES  IEEZK
HEEBEXENE - &R - EEMERRFR
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During the year ended 30 April 2010, the Board held 2 meetings REZ-T—ZTFMNA=+HILFERN &
to consider the nomination of Directors. EERIT T MAEBEAEREEIRS °
Number of
meetings attended
Name of Director EEnE HE IR
Executive Directors HITEF
- Mr. Sun Da Rui* (Chairman) -BRELRE (FE) -
— Mr. Peng Xiaodong* -wERR A -
- Mr. Haywood Cheung* - R{BER T A 1/2
— Mr. Chan Hok Ching* -REEEAE 2/2
— Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai, Stanley* - RIEE LAY 2/2
— Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley* — BEANE S A 1/2
- Dr. Chang Si-Chung* - SREHRIE L 1/2
Non-executive Directors FHITEF
— Mr. Ma Wei## - B & 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIHNTEE
— Mr. Zhu Chengwu* - RAER K& -
— Mr. Li Haifeng* - g A -
— Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael* — BSOS A -
— Mr. Cao Kuangyu** -EBR T A -
— Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond* - PREEBR ST A 1/2
— Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin -BEHL A 1/2
— Mr. Wong Yu Choi* - EmHRE & 0/2

* These Directors were appointed on 23 April 2010, and no meeting

was held after their appointment.

* Mr. Cao was appointed on 23 April 2010 and resigned on 3 June
2010, and no meeting was held during his term of appointment.

# These Directors resigned on 23 April 2010, and 2 meetings were  #

held before their resignation.

* ZEEEN _TTFUA-_T=HE
- RAESEEZETERIERTEE

I%I

EHBTE\RTEE -

REEER_F

T REFHENBRTTRRER -

BEER-_ZZE

* BRARCE-THFEHUA-_T=REZRE
TR —E-TFRNA=ZBEHITE  RREER

—EFENA -+ =HE

NFNA—BREZELR

##  Mr. Ma was appointed on 1 September 2009 and resigned on  ##
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23 April 2010, and 1 meeting was held during his term of
appointment.

Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael was appointed on 13 August 2010.

+

“E-THFEEUAT=ABE RREZ

EHRRTT —REH -
BYMNEER_ZE-TFN\A+=RE
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) (including all independent non-
executive Directors) is responsible for annually reviewing the
existing remuneration policy.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are to
formulate and review the annual remuneration policy of the
Company and then recommend to the Board and to determine
the specific remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and the senior management. The objective of the remuneration
policy is to attract, retain, and motivate a high calibre team which
is essential to the success of the Group.

During the year ended 30 April 2010, the Remuneration
Committee held 1 meeting. Members of the Remuneration
Committee and the attendance of each member are as follows:

J/J'_\%kk/m #& =

FWEES

ApmFHMEEE ([FMEEE]) (BHEM
ﬁé@i#%ﬂﬁ%%) BEEFmIIRE H
KR

FIER B 2 BE MBEE AR LR AR
AZFEHMER  ARAEFTSEZLE
EHRTEFRHRSNEREKE Z ABFH T
& - HNBCR 2 BRTIWE] - B8 Mg —
MRERZEN  EAKE KN ERS

= .
REE-ZZE—ZFNA=FTHIEFEAR ' H
MEEGERITT —AEHE - FTHZESKE

REKRBZHEBRIOT

Number of

meetings attended

Name of committee member ZEEREHSE HE IR
— Mr. Li Haifeng* (chairman) - R ET (FE) -
— Mr. Zhu Chengwu* - RAEAR LA -
— Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael** - BEUM A -
— Mr. Cao Kuangyu? - EH T A -
- Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond*# - R H e 1/1
— Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin## - FRE B St A 1/1
— Mr. Wong Yu Choi#* - BN 0/1

These Directors were appointed on 23 April 2010, and no
meeting was held after their appointment.

> Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael was appointed on 13 August 2010.

# Mr. Cao was appointed on 23 April 2010 and resigned on 3 June
2010, and no meeting was held during his term of appointment.

##  These Directors resigned on 23 April 2010, and 1 meeting was
held before their resignation.

* REEER-_T-TENA-+ZHEZR
T REFEZERLERTESE -

> BXNEER_E-EFNA+=AEZ

£ o

# EBARENR-ZE--EFNA-—FTZ=ZHEZME
IH—ZE—ZTFAE=ZHET RHEZ
THREY EREITEH -

# ZEEER_T-TFUA-_t=HE
T REEFHENRTT —REF -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
(including all independent non-executive Directors) did not involve
in the day-to-day management of the Company. The duties of
Audit Committee are as follows:

- making recommendations on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors and
considering the terms of such appointment;

- developing and implementing policies on the engagement
of external auditors for non-audit services;

- monitoring the integrity of the financial statements, annual
and interim reports and the auditors’ report to ensure that
the information presents a true and balanced assessment
of the Group’s financial position; and

- oversight the Group’s financial reporting system and
procedures including the adequacy of resources
qualifications and experiences of staff of the Company
financial reporting function and their training arrangement
and budget.

During the year ended 30 April 2010, the Audit Committee held
1 meeting with external auditors to discuss any areas of concerns
during the audits and review the audited financial statements and
1 meeting to review the interim financial statements. The Audit
Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance

BREES

AprEZZREE ([EREE8]) (BHEM
BEIFNTES) T2EARBZATEE
BT -BERZEGZBENT

- BOINBZBEEZRE  BENRERE
RIRHMERLZ BIMNEZBED 25

fERK

- BLOMNEBZEREDIR IR AR IR TS BT K
% AW T UARIT 5

- ERBBERKR - FWm - PHRE M
AR E 2 TR - ABRZEER
EENTEBISRAEE ZHBHNR
R

- EEAKEZUBHEBRGNER
BREAEARRMGABRELET
ZER BEREBEREEFTRNALE
E2BILBEREE -

REBEE-Z-TFOA=+THLEEAR
T?i,\aﬁﬁiﬂﬁl\ﬁﬂ?%(%”ﬁaﬂT /’/Z”;p%%'

AR NEZIEER IR 2 FEANELL

ERYBHRE  YART 2 RERFLT
P HRER -  BERREEMEB IR G
RLREPIZB 2 FE  ARTEINTAE

with accounting standards. Members of the Audit Committee and 518 - EZZE €K EREKE 2 HFEIE
the attendance of each member are as follows: WA
Number of
meetings attended
Name of committee member ZEGHRENRSA R
— Mr. Zhu Chengwu* (chairman) - RAERLE (E)E) -
— Mr. Li Haifeng* - g A -
— Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael** — BN S A -
— Mr. Cao Kuangyu* - BB T AL -
— Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond# - PREBR T AEH 2/2
— Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin## -REREE 2/2
— Mr. Wong Yu Choi# - B R E 2/2
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* These Directors were appointed on 23 April 2010, and no meeting
was held after their appointment.

> Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael was appointed on 13 August 2010.

# Mr. Cao was appointed on 23 April 2010 and resigned on 3 June
2010, and no meeting was held during his term of appointment.

##  These Directors resigned on 23 April 2010, and two meetings were

held before their resignation.

In addition, the members of the Audit Committee also have
meetings with the management and relevant staff of the Company
on several occasions and also have meeting with the independent
professional accountant firm appointed by the Company relating
to the internal control review matters during the year. Therefore,
the Audit Committee was actively participated in the internal
control review matters including the selection of professional
accountant firm and provide opinion to improve and strengthen
the internal control system, where necessary.

OPERATIONAL COMMITTEE

Apart from the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee, the Board had also established an Operational
Committee with specific terms of reference. The Operational
Committee (currently comprising the 2 executive Directors, namely
Mr. Sun Da Rui and Mr. Peng Xiaodong) is responsible for making
policy and discussing issues relating to the Company’s day-to-day
management and business.

The Operational Committee should report back to the Board of
its decisions or recommendations pursuant to its terms of
reference.

TEERHME

o BYNEER-_ZE-ZF N \AT=REZE
-

# BRER-_Z-ZFUA-_+T=-HEZHE
WHRZZE-ZFXA=AFHE  REEE
THEYERTEH -

# REEFN_ZE-TFHA-T+=HE
- REEBERRITTMAEH -

AN - BRERBEXE TR FAREEAR
RAIEEELREMETRTEHE  ULHARM
ERRNEREARNRREZBIEXES
BIITERITEE - Bt BREESRBSH
AREZERTER (BRHIEEXEE
7)) YRFBEREHER - USCE R
A EPESIEHIE -

MEZESS

GBEFMEZEeREXZZEE)  EFETR
ELEZBQURTHEABHERE 28
ZEE (BARBMBNTESMAN - IEX
BRENMEZBREREL) BB BT HRLH
ERARARAEEEREBZEH °

LELREQERBARBRERNESTEMS
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, with the support of the Group’s finance department
led by the Financial Controller, is responsible for keeping proper
accounting records and the preparation of the financial statements
of the Company and the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards have
been adopted and the financial statements comply with
accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies
have also been applied consistently.

The Board acknowledges their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the interim
and annual financial statements, and announcements to
shareholders.

The reporting responsibilities of Directors and external auditors
are further set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages
41 to 43 of this annual report.

For the year ended 30 April 2010, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, reviewed the adequacy of the resources and
qualification of staffing of accounting and financial reporting
function and considered that staffing is adequate and competent

in their roles and responsibilities.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems. The internal control systems are
designed to meet the Group’s particular needs and the risks to
which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement or
loss. The effectiveness of the internal control system was
discussed at least annually with the Audit Committee.
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Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital
expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring
the reliability of financial information used for business and
publication. Qualified management throughout the Group
maintains and monitors the internal control systems on an ongoing
basis.

The Company has appointed an independent accounting firm to

conduct review of the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Group.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 April 2010, fees paid to the auditors of the
Company for statutory audit service was HK$1,395,000 and for
other non-statutory audit services was HK$495,000.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

The rights of shareholders are contained in the Bye-Laws.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure
and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance
and activities. These include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

1E§§kk #&E:
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The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Group encourages its shareholders to attend annual general
meeting to ensure a high level of accountability and keep informed
of the Group’s strategy and goals. The Chairman of the Board
and the chairman of all the committees, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, are available to answer
any questions from the shareholders. Mr. Haywood Cheung, the
formed Chairman of the Company and Mr. Chan Ka Ling,
Edmond, the formed chairman of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, both of them resigned on 23 April
2010, attended the 2009 annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Simsen International Corporation Limited
Sun Da Rui

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 August 2010
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 47 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year and up to the date of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 April 2010 and the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 44 to 190.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 30 April 2010.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary of the results, and assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the published audited financial statements and reclassified
as appropriate, is set out on pages 191 to 192. The summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details in the share capital and share options of the Company
during the year are set out in notes 36 and 37 to the financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 30 April 2010.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group are set out in note 38 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 48
and 49, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 30 April 2010, the Company has no reserves available for
distribution, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Apart from turnover derived from trading segment that was
discontinued during the year, the Group’s turnover was derived
from customers whose identity is either could not be identified or
immaterial.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s largest
customers and five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Sun Da Rui (Chairman) (appointed on 23 April 2010)

Mr. Peng Xiaodong (appointed on 23 April 2010)
Mr. Haywood Cheung
(former Chairman)
Mr. Chan Hok Ching
(former Acting Managing
Director)
Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai, Stanley

(resigned on 23 April 2010)

(resigned on 23 April 2010)

(resigned on 23 April 2010)
Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley (resigned on 23 April 2010)

Dr. Chang Si-Chung (resigned on 23 April 2010)
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

Mr. Ma Wei (appointed on 1 September
2009 and resigned on

23 April 2010)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Zhu Chengwu (appointed on 23 April 2010)
Mr. Li Haifeng (appointed on 23 April 2010)
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael (appointed on 13 August 2010)
(appointed on 23 April 2010

and resigned on
3 June 2010)

Mr. Cao Kuangyu

Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond (resigned on 23 April 2010)

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (resigned on 23 April 2010)

Mr. Wong Yu Choi (resigned on 23 April 2010)

All of the Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a specific term, and subject to
retirement at the first general meeting of the Company after their
appointment, and thereafter subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Bye-Laws.

In accordance with bye-law no. 86(2B) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Sun
Da Rui, Mr. Peng Xiaodong, Mr. Zhu Chengwu, Mr. Li Haifeng
and Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael being Directors appointed after
the last annual general meeting of the Company, shall retire from
office as Directors and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on 8 December 2010 (“2010 AGM”).
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sun Da Rui (fA X&), aged 37, was appointed as an executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company on 23 April 2010.
Mr. Sun holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from
Swansea Institute of Higher Education of University of Wales in
England. Mr. Sun has been the chief operating officer of Hong
Yuan Da Mao Co. Ltd (ZR#E % A R A A) since May 2003.

Mr. Sun did not hold any directorship in other listed public
companies in the past three years. He is a director of some of
the subsidiaries of the Company. Save as disclosed above, he
does not hold any other positions with the Company or its
subsidiaries.

Mr. Sun entered into an appointment letter with the Company on
23 April 2010 for an initial term of two years commences on
23 April 2010, which is automatically renewable for successive
terms of one year upon the expiry of the said term. He is subject
to retirement at the first general meeting after his appointment
and thereafter subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Mr. Sun is entitled
to a director’s remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum, which is
determined by the Board with reference to his duties and
responsibilities and the prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Sun does not have any relationships with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company. He does not have any interest in the shares of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”).
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Mr. Peng Xiaodong (B %), aged 39, was appointed as an
executive Director on 23 April 2010. Mr. Peng obtained his
bachelor degree in economics and master degree in management
studies from Beijing Institute of Business (1t 7 & &%) (currently
known as Beijing Technology and Business University (1t 72 L&
KX E)). Mr. Peng was the general manager of the rating
department of China Chengxin Securities Rating Co., Ltd. (F
=B FHE A R A F]) from 1999 to 2002. Since 2003, Mr. Peng
has been the chairman of Dezhou Rongda Investments Limited
(BN &L ZEIE BBR A A]). Mr. Peng is experienced in and
knowledgeable about engaging in the securities, funds and futures
business.

Mr. Peng did not hold any directorship in other listed public
companies in the past three years. He is a director of some of
the subsidiaries of the Company. Save as disclosed above, he
does not hold any other positions with the Company or its
subsidiaries.

Mr. Peng entered into an appointment letter with the Company
on 23 April 2010 for an initial term of two years commences on
23 April 2010, which is automatically renewable for successive
terms of one year upon the expiry of the said term. He is subject
to retirement at the first general meeting after his appointment
and thereafter subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Mr. Peng is entitled
to a director’s remuneration of HK$120,000 per annum, which is
determined by the Board with reference to his duties and
responsibilities and the prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Peng is a controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company and has deemed interest in 650,907,127
shares of the Company held by Super Century, a company owned
as to 60% by Mr. Peng and 40% by Step Fast Company Limited,
representing approximately 60.10% of the issued share capital
of the Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Save
as aforesaid, Mr. Peng does not have any relationships with any
Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhu Chengwu (5R7& ), aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 April 2010. He is also
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Zhu holds a bachelor degree in
Finance from the Lanzhou University of Finance and Economics
(B3N B 225%). Mr. Zhu acquired the intermediate-level accountant
certificate jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and the Ministry
of Personnel of the PRC in 2000. Since May 2006, Mr. Zhu has
been the founder and managing director of Shanghai Zhong Hong
Wan Lian Investment Management Co. Ltd. (E/8F 8B HI%E
E 312 B PR A A)). He has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of United Energy Group Limited, a company
the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, since
December 2005. Mr. Zhu was the director and had assumed the
role of chief financial officer of Shenzhen Techo Telecom Co.,
Ltd. (R A EER D AR AR, a PRC company the shares
of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, during the
period from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Zhu was the chief financial officer
of Everbright Securities Company Limited during the period from
January 2005 to February 20086.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Zhu did not hold any directorship
in other listed public companies in the past three years and does
not hold any other positions with the Company or other members
of the Group.

Mr. Zhu entered into an appointment letter with the Company on
23 April 2010 for an initial term of two years commences on
23 April 2010 which is automatically renewable for successive
terms of one year upon the expiry of the said term. He is subject
to retirement at the first general meeting after his appointment
and thereafter subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Mr. Zhu is
entitled to a director’s remuneration of HK$180,000 per annum,
which is determined by the Board with reference to his duties
and responsibilities and the prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Zhu does not have any relationships with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company. He does not have any interest in the shares of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Li Haifeng (Z/81#1), aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 April 2010. He is also
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor degree in Laws
from the Faculty of Law in Peking University in 1992. Mr. Li is
currently an executive director and the executive president of
Beijing Enterprises Water Group Limited, a company the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, since 2008. He worked
in various departments and regions in Peking University Founder
Group Limited and was ultimately engaged as the assistant of
the president of Founder Group (75 IE £2 &) during the period from
1992 to 2000. Mr. Li was the executive vice president of Founder
Xintiandi Software Technology Co. Ltd. (77 IE# X E{F Rl & A
% 22 B]) during the period from 2001 to 2005. Mr. Li is currently
the chairman of the Supervisory Committee of Z. K. C
Environmental Group Co. Ltd. (FEIARIREEBR A F]) and a
director of China Field Development Limited.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Li did not hold directorship in other
listed public companies in the past three years and does not
hold any other positions with the Company or its subsidiaries.

Mr. Li entered into an appointment letter with the Company on
23 April 2010 for an initial term of two years commences on
23 April 2010, which is automatically renewable for successive
terms of one year upon the expiry of the said term. He is subject
to retirement at the first general meeting after his appointment
and thereafter subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Mr. Li is entitled
to a director’s remuneration of HK$150,000 per annum, which is
determined by the Board with reference to his duties and
responsibilities and the prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Li does not have any relationships with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company. He does not have any interest in the shares of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael (£230)/Y), aged 53, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 13 August 2010.
He is also a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Choi is a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a
Certified Public Accountant (practicing) and has been practicing
public accountancy in Hong Kong for over 20 years. Mr. Choi is
currently an independent non-executive director of each of Hunan
Nonferrous Metals Corporation Limited (stock code: 2626) and
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (stock code: 398), companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. He was previously an independent
non-executive director of each of Hong Kong Energy (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 987) and Dynamic Energy Holdings Limited
(stock code: 578) up to 10 April 2008 and 28 April 2010
respectively (shares of both companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange), and an independent non-executive director of Nam
Tai Electric & Electronic Products Limited (stock code: 2633) up
to 24 April 2009 (withdrawal of listing of the shares of which on
the Stock Exchange with effect from 13 November 2009).

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Choi did not hold any directorship
in other listed public companies in the past three years and does
not hold any other positions with the Company or its subsidiaries.

Mr. Choi entered into an appointment letter with the Company
on 13 August 2010 for an initial term of two years commences
on 13 August 2010, which is automatically renewable for
successive terms of one year upon the expiry of the said term.
He is subject to retirement at the first general meeting after his
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appointment and thereafter subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and in accordance with the Bye-Laws.
Mr. Choi is entitled to a director’s remuneration of HK$180,000
per annum, which is determined by the Board with reference to
his duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
conditions.

Mr. Choi does not have any relationships with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company. He does not have any interest in the shares of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2010 AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 46 to the financial statements, no
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its holding companies and subsidiaries
was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND LONG POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 30 April 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

ESEEHRE

EERESTRAERKSD
HERORESTHER 2ER
kR

EC T-TFEOA=1TH  EERARARK

THRABRARR S EBEER (KEFH
&Hﬁﬁ%WU%XVuBFﬁﬁEDZHﬂﬁ GiElEzlive
I REFPAEEREZE S MG RIE
BE2{FARA R TT‘EZ%&B%%&]EZ%X
Koka - SRBRESTAANE AR
RFr 2 EmNORBIT

RARERERZER

Number of issued ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company
FHEAAFAERTEREEOIEIZERERYA

Interest as Interest of  Total number  Approximate

beneficial controlled of ordinary  percentage of

owner corporation shares held  shareholding

Bi 2R "B BORER

Name of director EENSF BEARER NEER EEREH BA

Mr. Peng Xiaodong (Note) FERLE (Fi5) - 650,907,127 650,907,127 60.10%
Note: BIsE -

These 650,907,127 shares were held through Super Century, which is
owned as to 60% by Mr. Peng and 40% by Step Fast Company Limited.
Therefore, Mr. Peng is deemed to be interested in these shares.
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Save as disclosed above and in the section under the heading
“Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures” below, as at
30 April 2010, none of the Directors or the chief executives of
the Company had any interest in long positions or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

As at 30 April 2010, the following persons (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:
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INTEREST IN ORDINARY SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

ESEEHRE

RARERER 2 ES

Number of issued ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company
FAARERTEREEIBT ZEERYE

Interest as Interest of  Total number  Approximate

beneficial controlled of ordinary  percentage of

owner corporation shares held  shareholding

Bi 2 BB Bk

Name of shareholder RE®EE,/ B8 BEAER ARER EEREY Batk

Super Century ((Note) 7 (P 650,901,127 - 650,907,127 60.10%

Step Fast Company Limited Step Fast Company Limited

(Note) (K33%) - 650,907,127 650,907,127 60.10%

Mr. Li Jiang Nan (Note) IR A (F5) - 650,907,127 650,907,127 60.10%
Note: BfsE -

Super Century is owned as to 60% by Mr. Peng Xiaodong and 40% by
Step Fast Company Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Li Jiang Nan.
Therefore, Mr. Li and Step Fast Company Limited are deemed to be
interested in all the 650,907,127 shares held by Super Century.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2010, no other person
(other than a Director of chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 30 April 2010, the Group has the following

connected transactions:

1.

On 27 November 2009, Tuxedo Enterprises Limited
(“Tuxedo”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement (“Cheung’s Agreement”) with iWin
Limited (“iWin”), a company owned as to 75% by Mr. Cheung
Haywood (“Mr. Cheung”) and 25% by Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai,
Stanley, both are former executive Directors of the Company
resigned on 23 April 2010, pursuant to which Tuxedo agreed
to dispose to iWin 5,000,000 shares in Cheung’s Gold
Traders Limited (“Cheung’s”), representing the entire issued
share capital of Cheung’s for a consideration of
HK$5,000,000.

The transactions contemplated under the Cheung’s
Agreement have been approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 2 February 2010. Details of the
transactions were set out in the circular of the Company
dated 15 January 2010.

On 27 November 2009, Linewear Assets Limited
(“Linewear”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement (“H&S Agreement”) with Tracing
Paper International Limited (“Tracing Paper”), a company
owned as to 70% by Mr. Cheung and 30% by Lynch Oasis
Inc., pursuant to which Linewear agreed to dispose to
Tracing Paper 30,000,000 shares in Head & Shoulders
Securities Limited (“H&S”), representing the entire issued
share capital of H&S for a consideration of HK$31,000,000.

The transactions contemplated under the H&S Agreement
have been approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 2 February 2010. Details of the transactions were
set out in the circular of the Company dated 15 January
2010.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

3. On 23 April 2010, the Group engaged Mr. Chan Hok Ching
(“Mr. Chan”), the former executive Director of the Company
resigned on 23 April 2010, as a consultant that Mr. Chan
shall provide advises to the Board to ensure the smooth
and efficient running of the Group’s daily operations at a
monthly fee of HK$78,000. The transactions constituted
an exempt connected transaction for the Company which
is exempted from announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.22 of
the Listing Rules, details in respect of financial assistance given
to affiliated companies are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 13 to 24 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the reporting period of the
Group are set out in note 51 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEFRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in accordance with the
requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal control systems, and compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations. The Audit Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
Messrs. Zhu Chengwu (as chairman), Li Haifeng and Choi Man
Chau, Michael. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 April
2010.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young resigned as auditors of the Company with effect
from 14 December 2007 and HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was
appointed as auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy
arising from the resignation of Ernst & Young. Save as disclosed
above, there have been no other changes of auditors in the past
three years.

A resolution for the reappointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the 2010 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Simsen International Corporation Limited
Sun Da Rui

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 August 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Bl M & 3t 6% £ % 5

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

To the shareholders of
Simsen International Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Simsen International
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to
190, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 30 April 2010, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

B AR
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The Lankmark IR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B2 B EN R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30
April 2010 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 August 2010
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/ICONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEWER

Year ended 30 April 2010 HE_T—ZTFNHA=THILFE

2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
=2 FET FHET
Restated
<=l
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BREEEXEYR
REVENUE LN 5 211,527 13,112
Other income and gains E A RS 5 7,182 3,573
Brokerage and commission expenses £ 42 M A& X (89,489) (29,570)
Administrative and IR R B Ath 45 8 Al <2
other operating expenses (128,089) (113,114)
Impairment on goodwill P ERE 16 - (55,233)
Impairment on other long term assets Hth K HI & E R E = (4,468)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR ZEE 40 (21,626) -
Write-back of provision for impairment/ f”&ﬁﬁ SO B HE
(provision for impairment) o, ORERE)
on accounts receivable 24 287 (351)
Impairment on other receivables H b e WER SR (B 25 (894) -
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment B & /2 B #E &
on interests in associates Rl )//UZTE%?‘@ 21 (2,199) 1,112
Impairment on available-for-sale AHEE 2 RERE
investments 22 - (1,843)
Finance costs BEBR 7 (4,817) (834)
Share of profits and losses of FEAGEEZ A F) 2 m F
associates X EE 28,119 7,843
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM o 45 40 AN B e = I B A
CONTINUING OPERATIONS /MIJ/ (&1#8) 6 1 (179,773)
Income tax credit/(expense) SEEE, (FAX) 10 294 (21)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR RECEER 2 FE
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS /MIJ/ (E518) 295 (179,794)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION CRIEREER
Loss for the year from BRI EER
a discontinued operation < FEEE 12 (1,540) (33,251)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEFE (1,245) (213,045)
Attributable to: AR %75 FEAG -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEF =N 11 (3,694) (214,467)
Minority interests DEIR R 2,449 1,422
(1,245) (213,045)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A A RZERER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS MRERFEM
OF THE COMPANY ZERER 14

Basic and diluted HARR#E
For loss for the year FEEE (0.34 centsiE L) (19.80 centsiE1Il)

For loss from continuing operations B L ¥ 2 Ei8 (0.20 centsi#E 1) (16.73 centsi 1)

FREMNEEZREZF BRI BHREM T
13 & -

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are
disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEHEWER

Year ended 30 April 2010 HE_Z—ZFMNA=1+HIFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FHEx FHET
Restated
KET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EEFE (1,245) (213,045
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Htp2EW s, FEX)
INCOME/(EXPENSE)
Exchange difference arising on BMEBINEBEE
translation of foreign operations 2 PE R ZE%E 51 (6,385)
Reclassification adjustment for PR HE— KB AR E
reserve reclassified to profit and MEFOBEERE
loss upon disposal of a subsidiary Z R ED
ZEHOBRRAR 5,947 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FEHME2ME
INCOME/(EXPENSE) Wi (Bx)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (MBRFL1E) 5,998 (6,385)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FE2MA
INCOME/(EXPENSE) Wi (B B
FOR THE YEAR 4,753 (219,430)
Total comprehensive income/ A& SELGEE
(expense) attributable to: Wz, (A% 8%
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE ¥ =N 11 2,304 (219,964)
Minority interests DB R 2,449 534
4,753 (219,430)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R R

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFHA=+H

2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FHExT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L EN 15 40,088 38,426
Goodwill kS 16 1,498 1,498
Other long term assets EMREEE 17 2,683 6,393
Intangible assets EREE 18 2,350 3,367
Interest in a jointly-controlled entity —EHRAEH ¥ 2 ERE 20 - -
Interests in associates Nl e 21 39,523 82,415
Available-for-sale investments s sRE 22 - 136
Total non-current assets ERBEERTE 86,142 132,235
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories rE 23 130 130
Accounts receivable JiE UG BR X 24 269,945 83,618
Prepayments, deposits and BB FTe2k
other receivables H Ath e UG BR 3R 25 24,482 11,824
Due from associates g NI el 21 630 667
Equity investments at fair value through &2 2 B+ A8 % B8R
profit or loss ZRAIGE 26 3,282 35,495
Bank trust account balances RITIEFER AR 27 243,211 148,412
Pledged bank deposits BEIRITER 28 10,628 10,625
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEEMEER 28 45,528 58,314
Total current assets MENEERE 597,836 349,085
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Accounts payable JETBR X 29 307,900 225,098
Other payables and accruals HiEMNERERREGTER 30 10,969 10,639
Due to an associate RN —REEE AFRIE 21 12 -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERIRTTIEE 31 143,993 13,519
Finance leases payable JERT BV E TR A 32 358 276
Tax payable JERT IR 70 903
Due to minority shareholders RAOEIRE 2 5KIB 33 884 1,281
Total current liabilities BB EERE 464,186 251,716
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFEE 133,650 97,369
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEABBRBERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 219,792 229,604
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
E MR R 3R

30 April 2010 —ZE—Z4pA=+A
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FHEx FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERRITIEE 31 6,284 7,694
Finance leases payable JERT LA TR A 32 568 490
Loan from a minority shareholder DERRE K 33 654 900
Deferred tax liabilities BEEBIEBE 34 472 445
Provision for long service payments K HiIR %5 & B & 35 3,145 3,368
Total non-current liabilities EmEBBERE 11,123 12,897
Net assets FEE 208,669 216,707
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of VAN/NSIEZZS N
the Company el =
Issued capital BEITRR A 36 10,830 10,830
Reserves i 38(a) 197,839 195,535
208,669 206,365
Minority interests DERR R - 10,342
Total equity S BEE 208,669 216,707

The consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 190 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

24 August 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

Sun Da Rui

BRE

Director

EF

FLAEF10B 2R AR RER T —
TZENA-_tNBEKESS I AR KET

o WHTIEERREE

Peng Xiaodong
TEBRR
Director

EF
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Year ended 30 April 2010 H#E_T—ZFNA=1+HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Simsen International Corporation Limited X717 B EE (3%28%) B R A 7

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

KRRBEEAES
Share Exchange
Issued  premium Contributed fluctuation  Retained Minority Total
capital account surplus reserve profits Total interests equity
HE 22 |
BRTRE ROBEER HARK RIRE  REEA @i RRESE EREE
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
i3 FHET FET THET TR FET THET FET FET
At 1 May 2008 RZZENEF
TA—H 10,830 186,689" 5,282 (4020 224,001 426,350 9,810 436,160
Loss for the year FERE - - - - (214,467)  (214,467) 1,422 (213,045)
Other comprehensive FEEMZERY
expense for the year - - - (5,497) - (5,497 (888) (6,385)
Total comprehensive FEZA
expense for the year EFEt - - - (5,497)  (214,467)  (219,964) 534 (219.430)
Acquisition of additional KE-RNERR
interest in a subsidiary ZEMER 39 - - - (21) - 21) 2 (23)
At 30 April 2009 A\ZETNE
A=+H 10,830 186,689" 5,232* (5,920) 9,534* 206,365 10,342 216,707

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
approximately HK$195,535,000 in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREmBER

Year ended 30 April 2010 HE_ZT—ZTFMNA=FTHILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RNTER AR
Share Exchange
Issued  premium Contributed fluctuation  Retained Minority Total
capital  account surplus reserve profits Total interests equity
SHE LY

BRORE RHEEER AABR  RBRE REEA it RREZ  RR4E
Notes ~ HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HK§000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
(i3 TEr  TER 0 TER  TExT  TET  TER  TEAR  TEx

At 1 May 2009 RZEENEF
nA-B 10,830  186,689* 5,232 (5,920)* 9,534* 206,365 10,342 216,707
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (3,694) (3,694) 2,449 (1,245)
Other comprehensive FEEMZE
income for the year Wik - - - 5,998 - 5,998 - 5,998

Total comprehensive income £ 2 AN

for the year k] - - - 5,998 (3,694) 2,304 2,449 4,753
Disposal of a HE—fNE
subsidiary AR ER 40 - - - - - - (12,791) (12,791)
At 30 April 2010 R-Z-ZFF
A=+H 10,830 186,689* 5,232 78 5,840* 208,669 - 208,669
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of ~ * ZERBERRRGFAVBRARF 2HGE
approximately HK$197,839,000 (2009: approximately f###197,839,0008 L (ZZZTNEF : &
HK$195,535,000) in the consolidated statement of financial 195,535,000/ 7T) °
position.
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J CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTRER

Year ended 30 April 2010 H#E_T—ZFNA=1+HILFE

Simsen International Corporation Limited X717 B & (25%) AR A 7

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
{hg=2 FHExT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHZRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BRELRTE T, (E518)
From continuing operations REFFEREED 1 (179,773)
From a discontinued operation REBRIFEEER (1,540) (33,251)
Adjustments for: FE
Finance costs BEER 7 4,817 1,570
Interest income AEUW A 5 (83) (2,295)
Dividend income from EIREREKA
listed investments 5 (39) (2,448)
Share of profits and losses of FEAG B & A &) 2 g A
associates X518 (28,119) (7,843)
Amortisation 5y 6 468 1,119
Depreciation e 6 7,025 6,678
(Write-back of provision)/provision RHRE S
for long service payments (BfBERE) #i#E 6 (185) 371
Loss on disposal of items of HEME - BE
property, plant and equipment Bl BB 6 1 -
Impairment on goodwill BB E 16 - 55,233
Impairment on other long term assets ~ H b K # & E R E - 4,468
Impairment on other receivables H b fE R FURE 25 894 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRARIZEE 40 21,626 -
Fair value (gain)/loss on equity AT EGABRE Y
investments at fair value through R AR E 2 AFE
profit or loss, net (M=) /E1EFE (1,408) 82,150
Provision for impairment on FEUTBR 3k
accounts receivable BB 24 342 37,749
(Reversal of impairment)/ CRERR) /#E :
impairment on:
Interests in a jointly-controlled entity —E R H2
2R 6 - (366)
Interests in associates RN o 21 2,199 (1,112
Impairment on available-for-sale AHHEZRERE
investments 22 - 1,843
5,999 (35,907)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AERETRER

Year ended 30 April 2010 #HZE—-Z

—ZEMA=TALFE

2010 2009
—E-2F —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BT FHEx FHT
(Increase)/decrease in FEUBR K (3 on) Rk
accounts receivable (186,669) 25,893
Increase in prepayments, deposits TERHIE -~ 5l RHM
and other receivables R LAY BR X388 1 (14,163) 611)
Decrease/(increase) in due from %H&Hﬁﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁg
associates B (38 hn) 416 (667)
Decrease in equity investments ?E’&iﬁ FFABREZ
at fair value through profit or loss IR A% &R 33,621 5,502
(Increase)/decrease in bank trust RITEFERP &R
account balances (i"le])/ Ve (94,799) 7,180
Increase in accounts payable JFE AT BR FR 38 A0 82,889 3,517
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H b JES BR 3k
and accruals et E RN, Crd) 105 (1,363)
Increase in due to an associate JET—REEE QA S IEiJJD 12 -
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due KD #% 8 2 KA
to minority shareholders CRL) /38 m (643) 541
Decrease in provision for long REARTS € B # R
services payment (22) -
Cash (used in)/generated from KEER (AR EEBe
operations (173,254) 4,085
Cash (used in)/generated from KEER (AR EEBRe
operations (173,254) 4,085
Interest received 2 A E 83 2,295
Dividends received from iR EMERERA
listed investments 5 39 2,448
Hong Kong profits tax paid, net ENBEAENEHFE (512) (3,211)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated wEEe (FTA) EX
from operating activities ZHREMEFR (173,644) 5,617
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZFBHZHESRE
ACTIVITIES
(Increase)/decrease in pledged EEFEHREFER
time deposits (gm ,md 28 (3) 2,988
Decrease in amount due from JE Y — R FL R4 %)
a jointly-controlled entity EFRIER D 6 - 366
Purchases of items of property, NEWE - BB REE
plant and equipment 41(a) (8,529) (8,271)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEREE - (1,354)
Increase in other long term assets Ha RHAEEE N 160 (1,650)
Acquisition of associates HSZE iR l/NE] 41(b) (60,000) (4,850)
Repayment of shareholder’s loan 258 — e E R A
from an associate ZREER 100,000 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE B B8 A &) 39 - (23)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - BE
property, plant and equipment PRI E 6 -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries & &E A 8] FiE%IE 40 74,432 -
Net cash flows generated wEEESEE (FTA)
from/(used in) investing activities ZHEEMNEFE 106,066 (7,794)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTRER

Year ended 30 April 2010 H#E_T—ZFNA=1+HILFE

2010 2009
—E-FF —ZTENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHEx FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM METB2HEERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans FETRITER 143,129 16,616
Repayment of bank loans EEIRITER (7,203) (41,857)
Repayment of promissory note BEALEE 41(b) (70,000) -
Capital element of finance BmEEHES
lease rental payments - v N (296) (236)
Interest paid =PRSS 7 (3,976) (1,570)
Net cash flows generated MEEEBESLE (FTA)
from/(used in) financing activities ZEEMEFE 61,654 (27,047)
NET DECREASE IN BHeRBELEHEEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R4 % (5,924) (29,224)
Cash and cash equivalents REVNZEE
at beginning of year MRS EEIEE 49,869 79,093
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZESE
AT END OF YEAR FESEEER 43,945 49,869
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH & R B L EHER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EER DT
Cash and bank balances as stated BF AR 2R P 51
in the statement of financial position 2R & M IR1TAE 4 28 45,528 58,314
Bank overdrafts RITEX 31 (1,583) (8,445)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated IR& RS XA ZIRE
in the statement of cash flows MRS EEIEB 43,945 49,869
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
i B AR 2=

30 April 2010 —E—ZFA=+8
2010 2009
—¥-RF —EENF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B aE TET FAETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries WEAR 2R 19 188,283 114,704
Total non-current assets ERBEERT 188,283 114,704
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits ERHIE - 52
and other receivables T At i Uk BR 3R 25 3,243 231
Due from associates JrE g B 2 B FE 21 - 5
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEBEER 28 1,626 78
Total current assets REEERTE 4,869 314
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals H A R BR R
NIERTE R 30 3,337 2,454
Total current liabilities mEaERE 3,337 2,454
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ RBEE (BB BHE
(LIABILITIES) 1,532 (2,140)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEABRRBERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 189,815 112,564
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Provision for long service payments & HIRE & B 35 127 101
Net assets FEE 189,688 112,463
EQUITY =
Issued capital BB TR 36 10,830 10,830
Reserves s 38(b) 178,858 101,633
Total equity R BEE 189,688 112,463
Sun Da Rui Peng Xiaodong
BARE TER
Director Director
- -
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—E-FEMA=1A

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The head office and principal place of operations
of the Company is situated at 26th Floor, Top Glory Tower,
262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of
the Group are set out in note 47 to the financial statements.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

94

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, these
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain financial instruments, which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R B o

30 April 2010

QNAEEHR

ARRA D —HRBEREFMKLZE
RAF e RARIZBERERERETES
FHE R BB IREE S 1782625
BE F e 002612 o

RRBZEBEBRITREERER - A&
BIX2MBEARZIZXBHBER
FIF BRI 5E47 ©

RREE

AZEVBBRERDBBEEEGFMOE
B2 BEMBHREER ([FETH
HEER]) (BREAETBM B REE
8- B G R ([FEEER])
k2B  BREARGAEARFER
ARGz WEREMAREL o eHd - %
SUHREBRERBEEHEXIMAR
REEE EMRR (T ETRA) EA
ZHRERE BETEZRITAZEAYF
BB - BBmMRIIRIFESL KA
FREHE - BRBEAEN  MBR
RIZTAET(DET]) 25 iBLHE
HREERZEOZTIT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 April 2010.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. All income, expenses and unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intercompany transactions
and intercompany balances within the Group are eliminated
on consolidation in full.

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.
This method involves allocating the cost of the business
combinations to the fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
at the date of acquisition. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net
assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFFMA=+H

2.1 mREE ()

mEEXE

REVBRREEARFARESHE
Z\\a(uﬁﬂirj&/ﬁ@”@li_z TF
WMA=+THRIEFE2MBEHRE - B
/“ﬂZ%Z*EHaH&(ﬁﬁEIHHt(EﬂZISE@
SIEGIERE B) mae HEE%iEHER
EZEEE°$E@W AIER S &
HHFTEEXEZFBRA - AEZRERE
IETE SERE IR B RSB 8 o

FAMBARZWEEERWESS
EARR o WIEE RIAEBEE HF 2K
ROBEEMPBRIBRNEEZ A FE
AR HERFTEE 2 BERKA
BE - WEBRAURZBRABMFE
ERAVE DETBRATANMTEL
SAEECABZARE  MEREER
JEIRAGTE -

DB R a8 OB ORI 3F R AR
SEMFARAMB AR RE %
BE S -
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B ISR M aE

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFHA=+H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.
HKFRS 1 and

HKAS 27
Amendments

HKFRS 2
Amendments

HKFRS 7
Amendments

HKFRS 8

HKFRS 8
Amendment*

56

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of HKFRSs and
HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements
— Cost of an Investment in
a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity
or Associate

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosure
— Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Amendment to HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments — Disclosure of information
about segment assets
(early adopted)

e
J NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 BT RRIRE 2B

RE B A E B SRR B IR A
TEIE REERT R BM B RE LR

BB RS 2L
FA5%
REAGFER
F275R (1BE])

BBM R ELER
S 25% (B FT)

BBMBHRE LR
NG ACHD

BBM B HRE LR
S 855

BBMBRE LR
R ACCHIDM

EFTREM R
EELUEAL
MR &R
REBGE
A2 475
KB T5#
&K —RHBLR
Al ~ ARIEH
PREBE N
AlZ REFAK

EFTRBH R
EAREAE 25
DD (E 2
ZXN—EB
i K it 3

EFTREM R
EELIENS
SHITA:
WE—2E
T A

EFTRBM IR
HAERIF 85
BEDR
— BB EE
EEMZRE
(R ERM)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R B o

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFFMA=+H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY 222 BERBEEZ®H

AND DISCLOSURES (continued) (%)
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements BB EBNER HBBRXZZH
(&1E3])
HKAS 18 Amendment to Appendix to HKAS 18 BB G 2R CHEN - HR=
Amendment* Revenue — Determining whether an £185% (1BF])* BII 55 1857 P 8%
entity is acting as a principal or WA—EE
as an agent PEEDEF
Zit A"
HFEA

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs BB G 2R EEKAR
(Revised) B 2358 (F1ER])

HKAS 32 and Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial BB G 2R EHEN £
HKAS 1 Instruments: Presentation and FI2H K AE RIS 325%
Amendments HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial BB G 2R ZETA:

Statements — Puttable Financial F15% (1BE]) ZHRRES

Instruments and Obligations Arising iR

on Liquidation EREHp
K2 2K
— R EL A
TARBEHER
EEZEF

HK(IFRIC) = Int9  Amendments to HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 B (BEBETBERE BEEE
and HKAS 39 Reassessment of Embedded ZEZEE (B RS BA 75
Amendments Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial —RBEFIRK WERE

Instruments: Recognition and BB G ER ZEg)

Measurement - Embedded F395% (B8] —ZEF

Derivatives BIFAETRA
HOoyTET AR
R GFER
E39 £ AT
A #RH
FFE—# A
PTETA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R B o

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFHA=+H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY 22€xBERBEEZ2H

AND DISCLOSURES (continued) (%)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes BE (BRMBERE EP A2
ZEZE®)
—R2EZE135%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of 58 (BRMBHRE FHEEE G
Real Estate “2EZE®)
—REFE15%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a BE (BRI ERE S0 EHK
Foreign Operation REZEY) REFEE
—R2EZE165
HK(FRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers BB BEEUERE BEFEBEE
(adopted from 1 July 2009) “EZE®) (B=ZFZFNF
—REE185 +H—HE
)
Improvements to  Amendments to a number of HKFRS EEMBHREER BIIETEE
HKFRSs 2 DU SRS 2ER
(October 2008)** —EENF
+A)*
* Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in * BElt —EENFEEYBHREGER
May 2009). 22 (R_BEBNFRAEM) -
** The Group adopted all the improvements to HKFRSs issued = REBERMWBER-_ZZENFETA
in October 2008 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5 B2 BATEREER 2 B0GE - 18
Non-current assets Held for Sale and Discontinued RZZETNFLA—HEAERBZ
Operations — Plan to sell the controlling interest in a FEMRES B BN BREERE
subsidiary, which is effective for annual periods beginning S FFIEMH &2 B A E R B ARF
on or after 1 July 2009. EER—EHERWEB R A

R Rt as 2 AEET RIBR D

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact BRTXEBETBENBREENFET

of amendments to HKFRS 7, HKFRS 8, HKAS 1 (Revised) S BAMBEMEERES BEE

and amendment to HKAS 18, the adoption of these new FHERIE 15 (IER]) RIEFI BB G5

and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect FHRFI8RzHE 2 E—LEEIN -

on these financial statements. EMZEIE RICETTRBM GRS
FAW BB M B RREFEERNUB R
2 o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R B o

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFFMA=+H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY 222 BERBEEZEH

AND DISCLOSURES (continued) (%)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised EMZEFIE RICETTB BN BRE
HKFRSs are as follows: LRIz EZFEMT ¢

(A) AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 7 FINANCIAL (A) BRTEBHMBREERETR

INSTRUMENTS: DISCLOSURES - IMPROVING
DISCLOSURES ABOUT FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require additional
disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity
risk. Fair value measurements related to items
recorded at fair value are to be disclosed by sources
of inputs using a three-level fair value hierarchy, by
class, for all financial instruments recognised at fair
value. In addition, a reconciliation between the
beginning and ending balance is now required for level
3 fair value measurements, as well as significant
transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy. The
amendments also clarify the requirements for liquidity
risk disclosures with respect to derivatives transactions
and assets used for liquidity management. The fair
value measurement disclosures are presented in note
49 to the financial statements while the revised liquidity
risk disclosures are presented in note 50 to the financial
statements.

TEITAE RKE NEDH
TEZHE

BBV MEERETH (7)) 2
KA HER E MBI AR IE
HERINEE - BRARATFEAR
HBZRVERE  JVEBRM
BRAFERBZEBRITALRER
FIRE=BRFEFHERBEA
SPUETTIREE - WS - BATARE
BHFE=EBRVEFEZHYR
HIg ek - UARBBRTFESR
RBZB2BEREBRBETHR -
ZERIMBEFRITETARZR SR
MBEEEMBEERB IR
MR KERTE - X FEFE
BREHNPBRERM T4 - MK
& 5T B 1 [ e 35 B2 RIS B 7%
HFRPIFES0 ©
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Simsen International Corporation Limited X717 B & (25%) AR A 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R B o

—E-FEMA=1A

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

60

(B)

(C)

HKFRS 8 OPERATING SEGMENTS

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting, specifies how an entity should report
information about its operating segments, based on
information about the components of the entity that is
available to the chief operating decision maker for the
purpose of allocating resources to the segments and
assessing their performance. The standard also
requires the disclosure of information about the
products and services provided by the segments, the
geographical areas in which the Group operates, and
revenue from the Group’s major customers. The Group
concluded that the operating segments determined
in accordance with HKFRS 8 are the same as the
business segments previously identified under HKAS
14. These revised disclosures, including the related
revised comparative information, are shown in note 4
to the financial statements.

HKAS 1 (REVISED) PRESENTATION OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the
presentation and disclosures of financial statements.
The revised standard separates owner and non-owner
changes in equity. The statement of changes in equity
includes only details of transactions with owners, with
all non-owner changes in equity presented as a single
line. In addition, this standard introduces the statement
of comprehensive income, with all items of income
and expense recognised in profit or loss, together with
all other items of recognised income and expense
recognised directly in equity, either in one single
statement, or in two linked statements. The Group has
elected to present two statements.

22 BT RRIRE 2B

(&)

(B)

(C)

BBV BREER TS AEL
o]

RV HREERESHRMAES
SR ERE 145 7S - B
CERNAZHELENBE
£ IRBE2EERKEN
DRERLFEERARERZ
TEMAKBIEMZR - ZER
TREBRBELEN BRI Z
Em KR - AEBEE LML
HHBEMEEAEEETREFR
AZER - REERES  RIEF
BB HREERESRETE 2 LS
DEELARBEE S ELE
145RPRBI D 2 RO — B ° %
EFRERIHE (BREMABKER L
RER) ERF B MK T4
Ag o

BRETERIE15 EIEF)
HBEERZZH

EEGTERIE 19 (&R 3l A
MHERRZIIRBELZEE) - %
RIEFTERRERE ARIFES

AZRESZEADHZY - e
HP}REFABFEALTZIR
ZetlE - MABREA AR
HHAMELSEBEBZ7 - It

Sh - RIS AZEER © FT
BY AR ERARER &R
HipE o Rz M XIBEEEE
SR AR — DB HRK
MDRERK) - AREREZD
M |mEK -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(D)

(E)

AMENDMENT TO APPENDIX TO HKAS 18
REVENUE - DETERMINING WHETHER AN
ENTITY IS ACTING AS A PRINCIPAL OR AS
AN AGENT

Guidance has been added to the appendix (which
accompanies the standard) to determine whether the
Group is acting as a principal or as an agent. The
features to consider are whether the Group (i) has the
primary responsibility for providing the goods or
services, (i) has inventory risk, (iii) has the discretion
to establish prices and (iv) bears credit risk. The Group
has assessed its revenue arrangements against these
criteria and concluded that it is acting as a principal in
all arrangements. The amendment has had no impact
on the financial position or results of operations of the
Group.

In October 2008, the HKICPA issued its first
Improvements to HKFRSs which sets out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs. Except for the amendments
to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations — Plan to Sell the Controlling
Interest in a Subsidiary which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009, the Group
adopted all the amendments from 1 January 2009.
While the adoption of some of the amendments results
in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments has had a significant financial impact to
the Group. Details of the key amendments most
applicable to the Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures:
Removes the reference to “total interest income”
as a component of finance costs.

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFFMA=+H

22T RN E R

(&)

(D)

(E)

BRI E RS ERIFE 185
BRRA—BELEZEER
ZARAEA

ZERIFT B PR 8 B 185 F5 5| LAEE E
AEEBRGETZTAIARE
AN BEECZRAEZAAEBRS
(EZHERHERIRS : ()F
BEFERRE : (MEEELWIE
o RVVEAEEERR - XEE
ERBZEZETFEHEHBAR
B URAEEMELTHEAEY
BEZRTA - ZIBFTHAEEZ
SRR S EEET BT E o

RZZZENF+A - BEFHE
NEHRBHEY BEYFHRE
ERZh#E - EFEINEZEE
B IERE LR ZAEET - BRES
AR R R BSR4 EH &2 FF
REBEERDKRILASEF—F
B|HERNB ARG AR EIE
B2 EFTRZETNFLA—A
S LA T8 B gR 2 G JZ BRE AR AROD
rEEEHZZETNF—A—H
RIRMFTEER] - BRERMNID
CHEES R k-4 RN
ZEEIMEHASEELEXR
BT E - FRSEARASE
ZEBEBIZHFRBET

B |1

s AAEWBRESEAETRE
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Rz ED o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R B o

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFHA=+H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

62

(E)

(continued)

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies that assets and liabilities which are
classified as held for trading in accordance with
HKAS 39 are not automatically classified as
current in the statement of financial position.

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Replaces the term “net selling price” with “fair
value less costs to sell” and the recoverable
amount of property, plant and equipment is the
highest of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. In addition, items of property,
plant and equipment held for rental that are
routinely sold in the ordinary course of business
after rental are transferred to inventories when
rental ceases and they are held for sale.

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates: Clarifies that
an investment in an associate is a single asset
for the purpose of conducting the impairment test
and that no impairment is separately allocated
to goodwill included in the investment balance.

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets: When
discounted cash flows are used to estimate “fair
value less costs to sell”, additional disclosures
(e.g. discount rate and growth rate used) are
required which are consistent with the
disclosures required when the discounted cash
flows are used to estimate “value in use”.

22 BT RRIRE 2B

(&)

(E) (&)

BB ERNER A FH
RZE2#H BEREELEE
AHERIFEISR N B RFER
BCEENAE  TERY
kAR BE DB RIRE

5 o

B EAFIRYE
PE R e AT AP ER
HEKRAZ ZRIRRDFE
BJERE r MY%E - BER
Rz AR e ERIAEE
RHEREERAEE ERE
REEME 2REHERE -
gEAN - EEFHEH MR H
EZRHEFHEZYE - BE

REER  EECEHES
mBEBAGTEUSESE -

B g ERF285 K E
RE]ZKE - SEARBER
AME - REERRZRE
E—HE-EE  #fiTEern
FARERBE L BETES
Y BRORIE e

BB ERFEIHREER
B BFRRERERANE
AR FEREREERAKZE
B ARTTHEE (WA
FRERREREK) - BHFTR
HRenERRNETERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard '
HKFRS 1 Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Amendments Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time Adopters 2

HKFRS 1 Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Amendment Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited
Exemptions from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for the
First-time Adopters *

HKFRS 2 Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Amendment Payment — Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions 2

B 55 R AR BT

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFFMA=+H

23 EMMEHRERZER

Bt %5 i 5 2 A

AEBE HARIRA AT EBME R AE
BB REETEBS B wEE
U
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158 (EIEET) MR &R
BEMBHRELER ERIFEVE
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BEMBHRELER ERIFEVE
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RNE BT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R B o

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFHA=+H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

23 CEMEEHRER2ER
B i s 2R (&)

(continued)
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations ' BBV BRMEERL XKL
F 35 (K1E3E])
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments © BEVBREER 2 TAS
F 5%
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures ° BB G 2L B A 1 1% 75°
2455k (BIER])
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial BB G %R HERETE
Statements ' F279% (&&1&35]) R
HKAS 32 Amendments to HKAS 32 — Financial BB G R B BB
Amendment Instruments: Presentation E325% (1835]) R 3255
Classification of Right Issues ® —ZFTA:
E=F:058":3))q
Z R
HKAS 39 Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial BE R CHES
Amendment Instruments: Recognition and F39%% (1BET) AR E395%
Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items 2/ TA:
TR EE 2
— 5 &%
T A
HK(IFRIC) Amendments to HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 5% (BRI B®E Ei]&5 (BEER
- Int14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding ZEZE®) R ERE
Amendments Requirement — R E145% ZB®
(1&&1) —REE 145
Z JZE ﬁ'/Ty\
HK(IFRIC) Distributions of Non-cash Assets to B8 (BRI B®E WHEAADIR
—Int17 Owners ' ZEZE®) HH & BE
— REEITR
HK(IFRIC) Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with 55 (BRMBRE THEMEER
-Int19 Equity Instruments * REZE®) RAT A
—REE19%%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current
HKFRS 5 Assets Held for Sale and
included in Discontinued Operations — Plan to
Improvementsto  Sell the Controlling Interest in a
HKFRSs issued
in October 2008

Subsidiary

HK Interpretation 4  Leases — Determination of the Length
(Revised in of Lease Term in respect of

December 2009) Hong Kong Land Leases ?

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements
to HKFRSs 2009 and Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 which
sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily with
a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording.
The amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC) - Int 9,
HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009 while the amendments to HKFRS 5,
HKFRS 8, HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS 38 and HKAS
39 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010 although there are separate transitional
provisions for each standard or interpretation.

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFFMA=+H

23 EMMEHRERZER

B i E 2R (&)

BIERUBRE BTBEYG
RIS, HRe BB 55
HAH-BENT HEUEZ
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BEMBEIREER BHEIKE
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HEN B 2 Al

R

HEREEAWR HE &%
(RZEZTNF THHEEET

+Z AgERD THEZ 422

B EatESN - BA SRR E IREM
ZEFNFEBHBREER 2 HE
RZZ-—ZTEFBMBRELER 2K
£ BRHINEZABEMBREE
AER Z &R T2ENRMERT—
BIEX REFER - AP B REE
AIF25% - ARG EREISH - BB
(BEFHHRE2EZES) —2BF9
BhEEBRYHRERERES)
—REFIRZEBINR_FTNFL
A—RRZRARZFEMREER
& BN @mEERESR - BEMK
HEEANELH - BEGTERIEA
5 BEGSERETR BEGIE
175 - BA G ERIFEISREE
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30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFHA=+H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 CEMEERERZER

HONG KONG FINANCIAL s & 2 A (3]
REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

For Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010, PR-_E—EFRAAEM I —F
the amendments to HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27 are effective FEB Hﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬁ?'JZE&i& BEE
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 whereas AR EABRBEKRI - HEE
the amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS RS ERIEIT RE B G ERIE
34 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 are effective for annual periods THMZIBFTR _E—EFELH—HK
beginning on or after 1 January 2011 although there are AR FREBEAER - MYBEB
separate transitional provisions for each standard or B REERIE15R - BBMIERE %
interpretation. AIET75 - BB EAFEIR - BE

SETERIFE3AE R EE (BRYBHRE
REZEE) —REFE13R BTN
TE—F A HRZERAIRZF
JE AR AR

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 ! BE-ZENFEA—H=ZAEMAR
2 FIE B AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 B —-HA—-HzZA%EHR
2010 ZFEERE AR
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 3 BE-_ZE—ZSF_A—HAxZABHAR
2010 ZFEHRER
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 4 BE-Z—ZFtA—H=ZAEMAR
2 FJE BRI A AR
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 5 B-Z——F—HA—HzxZA%EHAR
2011 ZFEERE AR
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 6 BE-E—=F—F—HzZB%ERG
2013 ZFEHRER
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of AEBEBEATHEREAZET R
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial 5 {Ik R BBV BMELEN I HE -
application. So far, the Group considers these new and CARERE  REFEIREE
revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on ET%Q/% B 5 & 22 RIS K] g %TK &
the Group’s results of operations and financial position. BB E R BIROREKE
@,



ANNUAL REPORT 2009/2010 —2& A, —E T FF1f

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture operates
as a separate entity in which the Group and the other parties
have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture entity and the basis
on which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution.
The profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations
and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the
venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital
contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint
venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@) asubsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly
or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) ajointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or
joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally
not less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered
capital and is in a position to exercise significant
influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less
than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and
has neither joint control of, nor is in a position to
exercise significant influence over, the joint venture.

JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties
having unilateral control over the economic activity of the
jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s interests in jointly-controlled entity is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and reserves of jointly-
controlled entities is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly-controlled entity is
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the jointly-
controlled entity, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of jointly-controlled entity is
included as part of the Group’s interests in jointly-controlled
entity.

When an investment in a jointly-controlled entity is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence.

The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of associates is included in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates is included as part
of the Group’s interest in associates and is not individually
tested for impairment.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in associates are
treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entities represents the
excess of the cost of the business combination over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as an asset,
initially measured at cost and subsequently at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. In the case of associates
and jointly-controlled entities, goodwill is included in the
carrying amount thereof, rather than as a separately
identified asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
GOODWILL (continued)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of
the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal
of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
is measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
OTHER THAN GOODWILL

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, goodwill and a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in
which it arises.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
OTHER THAN GOODWILL (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.

RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;
(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
RELATED PARTIES (continued)

() the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(9) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When
an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as
held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified
as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Non-current assets and disposal
groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciation.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:
Leasehold land and buildings 4% or over the lease terms,
under medium term leases whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 20% to 25% or over the lease

terms, whichever is shorter

Furniture, equipment and 20% to 50%

motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
and any significant part initially recognised have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS AND DISPOSAL
GROUPS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal
group must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale
must be highly probable.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than financial
assets) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower
of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN
GOODWILL)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

LEASES

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest
element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases are included in property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the income
statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge
over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
LEASES (continued)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, prepayment, deposits and
other receivables, due from associates and equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

RERHMEHMEE

B TSI

RS EREIRAAE LR E
EDREBEAFEFABERZEHE
E - BERMEYERRAHEEZS
BMEE  IEEEERE P 2L T
AZUTETARE(REREME) - A%

BRI ERCHEERSETHD
B eMEERNERERFARTE
AHE WBYIFRAFE ABER
ZHRE BB EEREERZRA

S -

FIEREHAFTANEBEZEMEEAR
RE5BER XA EEAKE
B EEHBEEEH - FHEER
LTI R0 B FIFT R T 2 — AR HATE
AR eMEEZEE LY -

AEEzeREERRERE RS
BIER - EWERFK - TARRE - ET@
N Eo Al R U AR R~ B WSt & 1 B BROR
R AFEFABBRZBAKRE -

Rikit &

PRMEEHEBEFEARES RN
T



ANNUAL REPORT 2009/2010 —2& A, —E T FF1f

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with changes in far value recognised in the income
statement. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies set out or
“Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent
to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets and management’s intent to sell them in
the foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare
circumstances. The reclassification from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss to loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets. This
evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option
at designation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
income in the income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the income statement in finance
costs.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at
fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this
category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response
to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
valuation reserve until the investments is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
income statement in other income, or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the income statement and
removed from the available-for sale investment valuation
reserve. Interest and dividends earned are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the income statement as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near
term are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. Reclassification to
loans and receivables is permitted when the financial assets
meet the definition of loans and receivables and the Group
has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. The reclassification to the
held-to-maturity category is permitted only when the entity
has the ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of
the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest
rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

° either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
In that case, the Group also recognised an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if,
and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and
that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). If a
loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery or other criteria for
writing off amounts charged to the allowance account
against the carrying amount of impaired financial assets.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the income statement.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has been below
its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the income statement is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are not reversed through the
income statement. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
in the case of loans and borrowing, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable,
other payables and accruals, due to an associate, interest-
bearing bank borrowings, finance lease payable, due to
minority shareholders and loan from a minority shareholder.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate method
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted
for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position,
if, and only if, there is currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices
or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and
ask price for short positions), without any deduction for
transaction costs. For financial instruments where there is
no active market, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to
the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis;
and other valuation models.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTESTHBERME (&)

92

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

U where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

24 TESFBRBE A)

FriG® ()

LT BRI R E R Z8 - RAPARE
BeBELARSARABBERRR
EETIREE - RN AIEHE BIRE
ARt A AR SH R HUR E B 288~ R
PANBERCEE R ADARER
1B ANERAIBRIN

e EEMEEESLEN-EARSHT
(WIEBEHERRFRHETZE
ST M K ER TR F B 18 B
RERZEEXREMELZA
MRERZRE &

s HENHMEBAFR  BMEARLA
ShREDRZIREB B AR
EREZRMs  EEEREZREA
BER Al R oR B [ M I BE B B 1R
JERT M AR % F E i £ 5
ZIBERT » THERBELEREAE
7 o

EERIBEE 2 FREER SRS HE
TRERRE  YHHEETAIGEE R
%R JlE SR 3 M B P B S EE 0 IR E AR IR
BEWRBARIL - RERZBELEHRIEA
BENSRE PR TERFEHTME
WA 7] BE A f2 5 8 AR A5 i V) 5 T B =k
BB IR TR A E AR O B AR

93



Simsen International Corporation Limited X717 B & (25%) AR A 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R B o

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFHA=+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTHBRUE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates

Frig®i (&)
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EREZHHEEMER 2 HERTE
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HERBEm K (RBUE) FTE -

(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if
a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

REVENUE RECOGNITION L ON
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Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic =5
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can A
be measured reliably, on the following bases: R
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(a) from the trading of bullion, forex, securities, futures (a) =S - HNE - FBFH - HHE M

and options contracts, on the following bases: Ea ,\’JE‘-TEﬁfr S 2 WA TR T3
BEEHE

()  floating gains and losses on bullion, forex, futures 0] EA REHRETER A

and options contracts on all open contracts RERFEEHZED S

existing at the end of each reporting period are & - B REESLFEK

recognised by translating the contract amounts mREBE - RS WEEET

Y FEREAHREAR
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at the prices ruling at the end of each reporting
period and unrealised gains and losses on

securities with reference to the prices ruling at B2 AREH %Hﬂlﬁn&%ﬂﬁ
the end of each reporting period; and Z??EUJEM\ ;

(i)  profits and losses on trading in bullion, forex, (ih EE=D INE -FH H
securities, futures and options contracts are ENHEG 2 m R M EE
recognised on the trade date basis; TR 5 HEERER

(b) premium income and expense on dealing in bullion b)) BEEE@RINEGDHZREHA

and forex contract are recognised on trade date basis. MRS TIRR 5 B EERER o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (continued)

(©)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset;

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms; and

other services income, when the services are rendered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTESTHBERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting
is conditional upon a market or non-vetting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified, if the original terms of the award are
met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award,
as described in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of
equity-settled transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except
for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

DIVIDENDS

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained earnings within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.

The functional currency of an overseas associate is currency
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of this entity is
translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period, and its income statement is translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows.
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3.

100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining
whether an asset is impaired or the event previously causing
the asset impairment no longer exists, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rate or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the impairment
test.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

JUDGEMENTS (continued)
Long service payments

The Group and the Company had contingent liabilities in
respect of possible future long service payments to
employees under the Employment Ordinance. Management
has to consider whether it is appropriate to recognise the
provision for long service payments.

In making this judgement, the Group considers (i) the
number of current employees who have achieved the
required number of years of service to the Group and the
Company, as the end of the reporting period, in order to be
eligible for long service payments under the Employment
Ordinance if their employment is terminated in the
circumstances specified; (i) the average age of those
employees; (i) the turnover rate of employees; and (iv) the
possibility of the termination of employment of those
employees that meet the circumstances specified in the
Employment Ordinance based on the relevant economic
and other factors.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The available-for-sale financial assets have been stated at
costs less impairment. The impairment assessment was
based on the expected cash flows discounted at current
rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics. This impairment assessment requires the
Company to make estimates about expected future cash
flows and discount rates and hence are subject to
uncertainty.

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

3. EXREFTHE R (&)

F i (%)
RERH 2

RIRERIEOIANRE A QR AR
AEAEEXNZzRARBEMES
SARBE  EEEAERERARIR
BeBERLEE -

EHEBRT - AREEEONHREH
BEERC AAKE RAR R R E
MEFR - WERFTEHRFZLEZEM
RIFERIEOITEEREBRYRE
e HBEESHE  (\REEEZTY
Fi o (NZEREZEEE » R(vIR
BEHELENEBRE  EFAER
GOSEBR TR LEERAZERE
ZAJBEME -

AR ESfEEZBIE

AHHESREED ERABURED
B o REFENDERREARAEBER
UFH R EREFBZRE 2 REFLE X
Rz ERReREFE - BUENAE
ARRAHEMRKACRERITR
RIEL A AU RATHEEMN -

101



}

Simsen International Corporation Limited X717 B & (25%) AR A 7

B ISR M aE

30 April 2010

3.

102

—E-FEMA=1A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting date. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs to sell is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group reviews its accounts receivable portfolio to
assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded
in the income statement, the Group makes judgement as
to whether there is any observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from a portfolio of accounts receivable before the decrease
can be identified with an individual account receivable in
that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data
indicating that there has been an adverse change in the
payment status of borrowers in a group, or national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets
in the Group. Management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar
to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash
flows. The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between
loss estimates and actual loss experience.

B RS RAR M EE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R B o

—E-FEMA=1A

4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

104

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and

has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)

the securities segment represents the broking and
dealing of securities, futures and options contracts,
the provision of margin financing, advisory on
corporate finance, asset management and insurance
consultancy services, and results of investment holding
and proprietary trading of securities;

the bullion segment represents the broking and dealing
of bullion contracts;

the forex segment represents the broking and dealing
of forex contracts; and

the corporate and others segment comprises loan
financing, the provision of management and
consultancy services, and other services together with
corporate income and expense items.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax from continuing operations. The adjusted
profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before
tax from continuing operations except that head office and
corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude pledged deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, equity investments at fair value through profit
or loss, derivative financial instruments and other unallocated
head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis, but include the
short-term bank borrowings for the purpose of providing
margin financing and financing for subscription of new
shares in initial public offering to securities clients.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R B o

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFHA=+H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

4. BEHEH (&)

(A) BUSINESS SEGMENTS (A) ¥B2%E

The following tables present revenue, (loss)/profit and TEREINAEEHE_T—TF

certain asset, liability and expenditure information for FZEZNFHA=THILEFE

the Group’s business segments for the years ended ZEBLYBEZRA - (BB, &

30 April 2010 and 2009. FREFTEE BEREXE
o

Year ended 30 April 2010 BE-Z-ZFWNA=1THLHF

106

E
Corporate
Securities Bullion Forex  and others Consolidated
B35 g% HE  DERHEM Ge
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FEL FHL T T
Segment revenue: AEUA
Revenue from external customers ~ RENAZFEZMA 153,457 38,323 13,451 6,296 211,527
Other income and gains =R ONS L 4,343 1,705 (125) 1,139 7,062
Total @t 157,800 40,028 13,326 1,435 218,589
Segment results PEEE 22,099 14,582 3,224 (3,552) 36,353
Unallocated interest income RABHEHLA
and other income REMKA 120
Unallocated expenses RARAR (35,582)
Gain/(loss) on disposal HERBARF
of subsidiaries W&/ (BB 344 167 - (22,137) (21,626)
Write-back of provision for BT R ERE
impairment/(provision for BE/ (REES)
impairment) on accounts receivable 293 - - (6) 287
Impairment on other receivables  E EMEE TR E - - - (894) (894)
Impairment on interests in associates B4 2 AlE % E - - - (2,199) (2,199)
Share of profits of associates B E DR - - - 28,119 28,119
Finance costs BEER (4,577)
Profit before tax from continuing ~ HELL £
operations LB BATE R 1
Income tax credit fEhEe 294
Profit for the year from continuing ~ HE& % £%
operations LEE R 295
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R B o

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4., RESBER (B)
INFORMATION (continued)
(A) BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued) (A) EB2¥E (&)
Year ended 30 April 2010 (continued) BE-_Z—-ZFNMA=1THLE
E (&)
Corporate
Securities Bullion Forex  and others Consolidated
#H B MNE  DEREM Ge

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL TATL TATL

Segment assets PREE
Interests in associates REENA 2 ER - - - 39,523 39,523
Segment assets PREE 511,616 1,952 43,275 29,167 586,010
Unallocated assets APEEE 58,445
Total assets EERT 683,978
Segment liabilities PEERE
Segment liabilities PEER 411,974 8,219 38,571 6,708 465,472
Unallocated liabilties KoRAE 9,837
Total liabilities BEAS 475,309
Other segment information: HtpEER .
Amortisation B - - - 468 468
Depreciation Vil 4,524 702 745 1,054 7,025
(Write-back of provision for el CRlER
impairment)/provision for BB /RERE
impairment on accounts receivable (293) - - 6 (287)
Capital expenditure BEREY 8,080 25 1,033 - 9,138
Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, ’ BEAFRZBEDE - BEME
plant and equipment and other long term assets. BAREMREBEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 April 2010 —ZZ—ZFWA=+H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. RETBER (B)
INFORMATION (continued)
(A) BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued) (A) EB2¥E (@&
Year ended 30 April 2009 (restated) BE-ZZAFHNA=THLHF
E(@E5)
Corporate
Securities Bullion Forex  and others Consolidated
B B MNE  DERHEM &8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TR TATL TATL TATL

Segment revenue: 2ERA
Revenue from external customers ~ RENREFZMA  (1,429) 7,013 1,937 5,591 13,112
Other income and gains R ONSU e (1,904) - 19 764 (1,121)
Total @t (3,333) 7,013 1,956 6,355 11,991
Segment results PEEE (82,993) (6,510) (8,072) (6,880) (104,455)
Unallocated interest income RABEHEHA

and other income REMKA 4,694
Unallocated expenses FOERER (26,955)
Impairment on goodwil EERE (55,233) - - - (55,233)
Impairment on other long term assets & HEERE - - - (4,468) (4,468)
Reversal of impairment BERRERRERD

on interests in associates - - - 1,112 1,112
Impairment on available-for-sale A HE 2R EHE

investments - - - (1,843 (1,843)
Reversal of impairment on interests  — R HI (M £ g5

in a jointly-controlled entity LHERE - - - 366 366
Share of profits of associates B E AREH - - - 7,843 7,843
Finance costs HEER (834)
Loss before tax from continuing SEMEERK

operations LBHAEEE (179,773
Income tax expense FERAY (21)

Loss for the year from continuing ~ FER L %74
operations LEEER (179,794)
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30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFFMA=+H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. REFFER (E)
INFORMATION (continued)
(A) BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued) (A) ¥B2¥E (&)
Year ended 30 April 2009 (restated) (continued) BE-_ZZhFHNA=1THLHF

E RE5) (8)

Corporate
Securities Bullion Forex  and others Consolidated
B S MNE  DEREM g

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TR TATL TR

Segment assets TREE
Interests in associates NN PR 25 - - - 82,415 82,415
Segment assets NEEE 233,296 3,779 41,392 29,378 307,845
Unallocated assets RAMEE 91,060
Total assets EERE 481,320
Segment liabilities PEEE
Segment liabilities PRER 181,169 14,632 39,476 6,568 241,845
Unallocated liabilities RAEERE 22,768
Total liabilities BEAS 264,613
Other segment information: Rt EER
Amortisation 3 - - - 1,119 1,119
Depreciation & 4519 524 514 1,121 6,678
(Write-back of provision for Rl (hlERE

impairment)/provision for BE)/RERE

impairment on accounts receivable (76) 197 - 230 351
Capital expenditure* EARY 4,075 966 569 1,615 7,225
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * BEAFAZBEDE - BE MK

plant and equipment and other long term assets. BARBUREMRBEE -
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30 April 2010 —ZZ—ZFWA=+H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. RETBER (B)
INFORMATION (continued)
(B) GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (B) #hE&ER
The following tables present revenue and certain asset TREVWAEEHZ_ZT—ZTF
information for the Group’s geographical segments for RZZEZNFUNA=THIEFE
the years ended 30 April 2010 and 2009. ZHESEZWARETEEER
#} o
Year ended 30 April 2010 BE-_Z—ZFWA=1+HLE
E
Hong Kong Others Consolidated
B8 Hitr ]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Segment revenue: 2EBA
Revenue from external customers  RENREP 2 A 211,527 - 211,527

Other segment information: ~ Et 2 EEH :
Non-current assets ERBEE 84,022 2,120 86,142
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFFMA=+H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. REFTFER (E)
INFORMATION (continued)
(B) GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (continued) (B) E&E ¥ (&)
Year ended 30 April 2009 (restated) BE-_ZZNFNA=1TAHLHF
E (&%)
Hong Kong Canada Taiwan Others Consolidated
5% nex ag Hitr Re

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL T TEL TR T

Segment revenue: 2EBA

Revenue from external customers REMNREPZMA 92,302 (79,190) - - 13,112

Other segment information: ~ Htt 2 EE# :

Non-current assets EnBEE 50,394 - 79,620 2,221 132,235

The revenue information from continuing operations Pl BB ER UM AER T

above is based on the location of the customers. BIEE PSS -

The non-current asset information from continuing FBECEER ZIERDEE

operations above is based on the location of assets. BRTBIBEEMTHE S o

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR FBTXEREF2EH

CUSTOMERS

No customer contributed 10% or more of total revenue HE-ZZTFHNA=THILF

from continuing operations during the year ended B BMEEPHBESEEBE

30 April 2010 (2009: Nil). WA10% KA E(ZZTNF -
=) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFHA=+H

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 5. WA REMUW A LK K=
GAINS

WA AEB Z S5 BREE
- mE  HME - HIERHIBAHZ
e KRLEBERA  BEEEFK
BeaMREE  ERAAFREE
E B 2 A B LA R P ER 1t 2 B AR
5 2 IRISULA ©

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
commission, brokerage and premium income from
securities, bullion, forex, futures and options contracts; profit
or loss on trading of securities and bullion; interest income
from loan and margin financing activities; and service fee
income from consultancy services provided.

112

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains from REQEEB 2 WA RE B A LA K
continuing operations is as follows: W |t :
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FH&T
restated
K E 5
Revenue ['ON
Fees, commission and premium EE o HNE - FBE - HE
income, net, from bullion, KBS s
forex, securities, futures ZWE A
and options contract broking FoaEW AT 159,020 95,952
Trading profit/(loss) on bullion, = IME - BHER
forex, securities and HEEH2ZRS
futures contracts, net SHA (E51E) JF 5 37,756 (88,733)
Interest income from loan ERRFEREEE
and margin financing activities 2 R B A 5,891 217
Other service income E A AR TS Ug A 8,860 5,676
211,527 13,112
Other income and gains Hapg A R &
Bank interest income RITHBHA 83 2,245
Dividend income from listed investments 3% & B 2 U8 A 39 2,448
Foreign exchange differences, net E 5 Z% - F 8 3,197 (3,841)
Others Ei 3,863 2,721
7,182 3,573
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6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6.

The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax from continuing
operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 April 2010
BRBEATR I, (B518)

AREB 2 FHBEEER 2 RB A A
/(BB B GEA) THIEHE

B RS RAR M EE

—E-FEMA=1A

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Restated
KET
Amortisation 1 5K 468 1,119
Depreciation e 7,025 6,678
Minimum lease payments under HERLNEWE
operating leases on rental of IR
office premises HEME 18,364 13,413
Auditors’ remuneration % B A0 BN & 1,385 1,490
Employee benefits expenses EERFAX
(including directors’ remuneration (BREESHE
(note 8)): (MI5E8)) -
Salaries and other benefits*** e KA MR R 62,434 53,096
Pension scheme contributions** BIREFHEI R 1,897 1,695
(Write-back of provision)/provision REIRB 2 (B
for long service payments o) B (185) 371
(Write-back of provision)/provision TR (BERD) BE
for annual leaves (179) 14
Total employee benefit expense REEBRMAX 63,967 55,176
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - = K& H
plant and equipment* B8 1 -
Reversal of impairment of interest —E A
in a jointly-controlled entity* B ER O - (366)
* Included in “Administrative and other operating expenses” * BEFASZRERER 2 [T R H AL

on the face of the consolidated income statement.

- At 30 April 2010, the Group had no forfeited contributions >
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes

in future years (2009: Nil).

**  Approximately HK$4,295,000 (2009: approximately e
HK$4,386,000) is included in “Brokerage and commission
expenses” on the face of the consolidated income statement.

BRXIA -

RZZE-—ZFEUA=1+H rEEY
EOR WA AR SRR E 2R
REFEHR(CBTNF - |) o

494,295,000 T (ZZEZNF : 4
4,386,000/870) Bat AGZREWEER 2
(e kAEATIA -
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30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFHA=+H

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is

7. BEEH

FERLZXHBZBREBRMMT

as follows:
Group
KEH
2010 2009
—E-=5F —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
restated
&5
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts, IRITER - B - Hib
other loans and promissory note: ER AR ERNE
— wholly repayable within five years -ARAFANEHER 4,484 488
- not wholly repayable within five years - #BERAFAREEERE 220 267
Interest on finance leases RERLY ZFE 113 79
4,817 834

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM<

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

FA - RELETRBREERRED
F16IEEEZEEM LT

Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-FF —“ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fees B & 5,632 5,456
Other emoluments: H A H i -
Salaries, allowances and e REEEDH&S
benefits in kind 4,088 3,746
Bonuses 14T 193 193
Pension scheme contributions RIRBETEIHER 77 77
4,358 4,016
9,990 9,472
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30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFFMA=+H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM<E (&)

(continued)

(A) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

(A) BIYFHITES

FAXNTEIIFNTES 2

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows: T
Group
EEEH
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond fREmREE (R —FF
(resigned on 23 April 2010) MAZ+=RH&M 180 180
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin FREREE(RZE—FF
(resigned on 23 April 2010) MA-+=H#&M 180 180
Mr. Wong Yu Choi BEWMMEE(R_ZE—FF
(resigned on 23 April 2010) MAZ+=RH&M 120 120
Mr. Li Haifeng FEELEE(RZZ—FF
(appointed on 23 April 2010) MA-+=HEZT) 3 -
Mr. Zhu Chengwu KEREE(RZZE—FF
(appointed on 23 April 2010) MA-+=HEZT) 4 -
Mr. Cao Kuangyu BERTEERZZ—FF
(appointed on 23 April 2010 WMA-+=ZHEZII
and resigned on 3 June 2010) RZE—FF,XH=AH
BHE) 3 -
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael BEXMEE(RZE—ZF
(appointed on 13 August 2010) NAE+=BEZT) - -
490 480

FRAEEMEN TIBILIEATT
EZ2FM(CETNEFE E) -

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2009: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R B o

30 April 2010 —ZZ—ZFWA=+H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEME (B
(continued)
(B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (B) kHiTES
The fees paid to a non-executive director during the FRAXN T IERITES 2B
year was as follows: Ey/ (N
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Mr. Ma Wei (appointed on BEEE(RZZEZNF
1 September 2009 and NWE—BHEZFT
resigned on 23 April 2010) WHR-ZE—TF
MA=+=HET) 160 -
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30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEME (&)
(continued)
(C) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (c) BiTES
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses  contributions  remuneration
He 2H Bffe
e RENAE ta FHBR EE L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
2010 “¥-%F
Mr. Haywood Cheung RERTERW-2-%%
(resigned on 23 April 2010) MAZT=HEM) 4,760 1,140 - - 5,900
Dr. Chang Si-Chung RhgET(R-2-%F
(resigned on 23 April 2010) MAZ+ZRET) - 330 - - 330
Mr. Chan Hok Ching REETE(R-5-%F
(resigned on 23 April 2010) MAZ+ZRET) - 924 52 3 1,007
Mr. Cheung Tak Kwal, Stanley REERE(R-E-3F
fesigned on 23 Aprl 2010) mA=+ZRE) 216 674 56 3 90
Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley BHERE(N-_5-5F
(resigned on 23 April 2010) MAZ+ZRET) - 1,020 85 12 1,117
Mr. Sun Da Rui BRERERZ2-3%
(appointed on 23 Apri 2010) MA-+=REZM) 3 - - - 3
Mr. Peng Xiaodong YBERAE(R-Z-3%
(appointed on 23 Apri 2010) MA-+=HEZH) 3 - - - 3
4,982 4,088 193 I 9,340
2009 “EENEF
Mr. Haywood Cheung RERLE 4,760 1140 - - 5,900
Dr. Chang Si-Chung RipnEL - - - - -
Mr. Chan Hok Ching BEE%E - 912 52 3 995
Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai, Stanley REELL 216 674 56 34 980
Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley BEELE - 1,020 85 12 1,117
4,976 3,746 193 77 8,992
There was no arrangement under which a director FRN - BEEMNESTLLTEW
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during B EEREERAME (2SN
the year (2009: Nil). Fm) e
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. A VB SHESR

FR - AfuExEHFEESBFENA (=
TETNF ) EE  c SEMEFEE
HR EXKFEs s Eep— 1 (ZEEN
F: () ReHIFEEEERAFEEY

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four (2009: four) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining one (2009: one) non-director, highest paid

employee for the year is as follows: BesFEmT
Group
KEH
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Salaries, allowances and e RIELREDHNG
benefits in kind 1,307 1,001
Bonuses TE4T = 147
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHR 12 12
1,319 1,160
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose BRTIFHER 2 &S FHIIEESRE

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

8 AT

Number of employees

EBEAH
2010 2009
—E-—FF “ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z-1,000,0007% 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T-1,500,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 JT-2,000,0007% JT - -
1 1
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10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 10. FRS8 %) BX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of FRARBBRI (5T ERPUEFIZ
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits EBMERBEI6.5%(ZTET N F :
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2009: Nil). Taxes on 16.5%) IR EHB (ZETNF - |) o
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the H 3 [ FE SR B N 2 B IR TI IR 15 AR
rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group EEKEXEB 2 REAER ZERME
operates. HE o
2010 2009
—E2-2F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Group REH
Current-Hong Kong BVH — &&
Over-provision of current tax BT FE 2 BNEATIE
in prior years FREE R E (391) (612)
Charge for the year FEER 70 1,050
Deferred (note 34) RIE (M15E34) 27 (417)
Total income tax (credit)/expense FRAGEHR(EL) FX
for the year ek (294) 21
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10.

11.

120

—E-FEMA=1A

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE
(continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss)

before tax at statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which
the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax

10. FRS %t GER) B (&)

RBRARARARRENB AR ERA
ERER 2 EE MR E 2 BRI AR F
(B8 2B Y BIRER MR KRt

expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: BoMERASZ 2 HEROT -
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Restated
K E 5
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing B & & %5 2 BREAT
operations wm A, (Eﬂ‘ﬁ) 1 (179,773)
Less: Share of profits and losses of W —E R EE I
a jointly-controlled entity R 2 T
and associates < EEERE (28,119) (7,843)
(28,118) (187,616)
Tax credit at the statutory tax rate BEAEMEFHE o HIEE S (4,639) (30,957)
Income not subject to tax BRI 2 WA (12,909) (2,082)
Expenses not deductible for tax AWMz X 16,577 26,329
Tax losses not recognised KRIERZHIAEE 1,067 6,731
Adjustments in respect of current tax ~ LAfF HARS BN BR 508 2 33
of previous period (390) -
Total income tax (credit)/expense FEEH
for the year (Ex) HAXBE (294) 21

The share of tax attributable to associates amounted to
approximately HK$2,303,000 (2009: Nil) is included in
“Share of profits or loss of associates” in the consolidated
income statement.

For the years ended 30 April 2010 and 2009, there was no
tax attributable to a jointly-controlled entity shared by the
Group.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 30 April 2010 included a profit
of HK$77,225,000 (2009: loss of HK$254,278,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 38(b)).

FEAR B =2 R RIBTA X9 2,303,000/ 7T
(ZZZNF Bt ABRARERZ
(A E QR A ERIA -

BE_TZER_TTNFHA=
THELESFE  AEBELEEGE-FHHR
RIS RBLIR

RABEBEARIEEE

HE_ZTZSFNA=THLFE -
PIN/N T%*ﬁ/\}&“faﬁ?ééﬂamﬁﬁ
KRR HBEBRRANERZ &M
77,225,000 L (ZEZENF : EiE
254,278,000 7t) (MI5E38(b)) °
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 12. ER UL REXETK
FR - AEEEKIEH B RABE
R BEER  KIE EREBZ AR
ABA-SEAFAA - RLEHE

During the year, the Group discontinued its trading motor
vehicles and related products operation. The effective date
of the discontinuance was in September 2009. The results

of the discontinued operations were as follows:

X2 ERBEWT -

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ETAF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FET

Revenue WA 3,604 18,705

Other income and gains H AU A R W 5 388 3,456

Expenses 53 (5,398) (54,676)

Finance costs BEEA (134) (736)
Loss before tax from BRI EFER

the discontinued operation Z B AT B (1,540) (33,251)

Income tax FriS i - -
Loss for the year from RESl

the discontinued operation 2 FEEBE (1,540) (33,251)

The net cash flows attributable to the discontinued operation

are as follows:

ERIEEEXBRERDREFRN

T

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FET

Operating activities K TEE 3,733 14,598

Investing activities HEEE - 10,000

Financing activities BEED (3,834) (24,645)

Net cash outflow WE b 558 (101) (47)
Loss per share: B EE

Basic and diluted, from
the discontinued operation

EARNES  RAERIL

(0.14 centsj&1l)

(3.07 centsiE L)
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIION 12. B R EREXEK (B)

(continued)

ERIEEEEHE 2 ERENREEE
BIVRE MRS -

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share from
the discontinued operation are based on:

2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss attributable to ordinary RAEEBRERRE
equity holders of the Company JEIEE RIS E X
from the discontinued operation ZE1E 1,540 33,251
Number of Shares
& B
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF
’000 ’000
T T
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FA{Est E G EAR
shares issued during the year TMEEEE TR
used in the basic and diluted loss BRITERK
per share calculation 2 NI 8L 1,083,044 1,083,044
13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
TET FET
Proposed final — Nil (2009: Nil) BEoRH — BREAER

per ordinary share

ZER(ZETNEF  8) -
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14. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share amount
is based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$3,694,000 (2009: approximately HK$214,467,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,083,044,000 (2009: 1,083,044,000) in issue during the
year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
presented for the years ended 30 April 2010 and 2009 in
respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during these years.

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

14. X AR EEREZREE
2 BREE

EREAREEEENREBEARRE
BRESBRERGFEESBEY
3,694,000 L (ZEZTNLF + 4
214,467,000 70) RFEARNE B1TE R
A% ANHE F 19 801,083,044,0000% (ZEZF
FLEE © 1,083,044,0000%) 51 &

R ARERRE-T-TER-F
AN A =1 B LR
EERTEBR - MLARKETFE
B 252 R EARESEIENLHE
B -

FEREAREGERIREATRER

based on: HE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FHET
Restated
KET
Loss: BB
Loss attributable to ordinary RETESRER
equity holders of the Company, & DT = Wi N/NC]
used in the basic and diluted loss LB AR A o IR PR
per share calculation: ZEE
From continuing operations REFELEET (2,154) (181,216)
From a discontinued operation RE DRI EFET (1,540) (33,251)
(3,694) (214,467)
Number of Shares
grig g
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
’000 ’000
F & F A&
Shares: RV
Weighted average number of REStEBRER
ordinary shares in issue during NESEEE
the year used in the basic and ZEANBEITERR
diluted loss per share calculation 2 b Er 1,083,044 1,083,044
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. 1% - MENRRZRE

EQUIPMENT
Group NEE
Leasehold land Furniture,
and buildings equipment
under medium Leasehold and motor
term leases’ improvements vehicles Total
FHEL .
HELBER BA - 24
By HONEEE RAE am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
X T X TEL
30 April 2010 —E2-ZEMA=TAH
Cost: KA :
At beginning of year RET] 40,250 11,149 14,308 65,707
Additions NE - 2,931 6,067 8,998
Disposals/write-off e,/ HsH - (76) (427) (503)
At 30 April 2010 RZE-ZFMA=1H 40,250 14,004 19,948 74,202
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment: - £ 5H7 & K& :
At beginning of year RED 16,756 4,802 5,723 27,281
Provided during the year FERREERE 1,610 2,167 3,248 7,025
Disposals/write-off &/ HH - (76) (116) (192)
At 30 April 2010 RZE-ZTFENA=+H 18,366 6,893 8,855 34,114
Net book value at 30 April 2010 R-F-FTEMA=1H
ZEEFE 21,884 7,111 11,093 40,088
30 April 2009 ZERAFNAZTH
Cost: KA
At beginning of year RNET] 40,250 10,683 13,004 63,937
Exchange alignment IMEHE - - 1 1
Additions e - 661 2,778 3,439
Disposals/write-off &/ HH - (195) (1,475) (1,670)
At 30 April 2009 RZEENFNA=1H 40,250 11,149 14,308 65,707
Accumulated depreciation and impairment: 247 KR (E
At beginning of year RE 15,146 3,035 4,092 22,273
Provided during the year FRREERE 1,610 1,962 3,106 6,678
Disposals/write-off HE /5 - (195) (1,475) (1,670)
At 30 April 2009 RZZTNFNA=1AH 16,756 4,802 5,723 27,281
Net book value at 30 April 2009 RZZTNFNA=1A
ZEEFE 23,494 6,347 8,585 38,426
#  As the prepaid land lease payments cannot be allocated # &3] E/\J’“Eﬁiﬂﬁﬂ%ﬂi%‘éT?i& o=l

WRETED  RIEFEGTENS
175% (4] - 2B AL Mg
FHA - FIEME - BB MR 2R
B -

reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of land and building
as finance leases in property, plant and equipment in
accordance with HKAS 17 “Leases”.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

As at 30 April 2010, all leasehold land and buildings of the
Group in Hong Kong were pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 31).

The net book value of furniture, equipment and motor
vehicles of the Group included an amount of HK$802,000
(2009: HK$721,000) in respect of assets held under finance
leases.

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

15. M1 % - BERRE (&)

RZZE-—ZFNA=+H KEEME
BEHEL W REFHEEMR  (EAN
SEFERITRVE 2 HE IR (PHFES1) ©

AEBRM - REXREZE@FE
BERERERLOEE 2 EES02,000
BIL(ZEZENF : 721,00087T) °

GOODWILL 16. &
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost BAME 1,498 109,683
Accumulated impairment REHRAE = (108,185)
Net carrying amount FEEE 1,498 1,498
Cost at beginning of year, net RENZKAE -
of accumulated impairment R EHRE 1,498 56,731
Impairment during the year FNRIE - (55,233)
Net carrying amount BRAEFE 1,498 1,498
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16. GOODWILL (continued)

126

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been
allocated to forex segment, which is a cash-generating units,
for impairment testing:

° forex segment

The recoverable amount of the forex segment has been
determined based on value in use calculations using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by the directors. The discount rates
applied to the cash flow projections are 5% (2009: 5%) and
cash flows beyond the five-year period are ignored.

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to forex
segment.

The following describes each key assumption used in the
value in use calculations of the forex segment on which the
directors have based to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Growth rate

No growth rate has been taken into account in the cash
flow projections as the Group considers that the growth
rate cannot be reliably measured.

Discount rate

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant units.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. B & (&)

A& 2R E R

REITRERR - BREBA G
BrBECHROREINERS (RRE
EABM)

o HMEXRT

SNE TS 2 FTUEl 58 (IR ] 2 B E(E
FOREAAE) DRESHEZ AFH
MREEERRERERAUEE - &
ARRERERRZITRERE% (ZF
TNF 6% MAFHUEZBRER
BRITTEE -

BEZEREEDBEIMNEXF -

T A E = RN ETTREERERH

ZONERB 2 EREERNEMRERZ
BEEXBRK:
HEF

ZDi ZK%@ R R R AR A ST

B HREESTEBAISYES
&%E%o
VB S

PERA 2 T IR R R AT e S iR B2 48
FEUARFERR
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17. OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS 17. Htt RBEE

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET TETT

Membership of the Chinese Gold and & R¥Z FH S5

Silver Exchange Society - 2,000
Deposits with the Stock Exchange of ~ BHEHMA R S ABR AT

Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”): (B PT)) =%

Compensation Fund EEES 203 393

Fidelity Fund ERES 250 350
Admission fee paid to the Hong Kong ¥ &EHR R&EH

Securities Clearing Company Limited AR ATz ASE 250 350
Contribution to the Guarantee Fund M REERIKRS

of the Central Clearing and REBEESMED

Settlement System 2 R 250 300
Deposit with the Reserve Fund of BEAHEHEERR AR

Hong Kong Futures Exchange EEE2R:

Clearing Corporation Limited 1,640 3,000

2,683 6,393
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BLEE
Exploration Trading
right right Total

30 April 2010 R 5B et
—E-ZEMA=TH HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET
Cost: AME :
At beginning of year RE 1,586 20,721 22,307
Exchange realignment NE BB 1 - 1
Disposal of a subsidiary HEM B DA - (550) (550)
At end of year REE 1,587 20,171 21,758
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: ~ Z:t# 85 MR E -
At beginning of year REN 1,119 17,821 18,940
Provided during the year FRRBER 468 - 468
At end of year NGRS 1,587 17,821 19,408
Net book value at end of year RER 7 BEFE - 2,350 2,350

Exploration Trading
right right Total

30 April 2009 MR EER @st
—EZAFEMA=TH HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THT AT
Cost: PANE
At beginning of year REA] - 20,171 20,171
Additions NE 1,586 550 2,136
At end of year NGRS 1,586 20,721 22,307
Accumulated amortisation and impairment; &t 85 MR (E -
At beginning of year RER - 17,821 17,821
Provided during the year FRIREER 1,119 - 1,119
At end of year REE 1,119 17,821 18,940
Net book value at end of year REKR 7 RHFE 467 2,900 3,367

Intangible assets comprised the eligibility rights to trade on BRIVEEBFEAINSBE BT RS
or through the SEHK and Hong Kong Futures Exchange BEHERSGFERAARIETEE &
Limited, which have no expiry dates; and the exploration FEEEERERN  MARERR
right, which will be expired on 13 September 2011. —E——FNA+=HFH -
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. B AR 2 R
Company
¥ NN

2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost LM - KA 41,510 41,510
Due from subsidiaries JEUBT B A B R E 1,321,010 1,366,297
Due to subsidiaries KM B~ RIFIA (49,623) (78,577)
1,312,897 1,329,230
Provision for impairment* B B (1,124,614) (1,214,526)
188,283 114,704
#  An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted #  BEREFETHBARZEEFER
investments and due from subsidiaries with carrying amounts EREREE MERETEAES
in aggregate of approximately HK$1,296,233,000 (before F#91,296,233,0007% 7T (R HKRREE
deducting the impairment loss) (2009 : approximately &8 (ZZTNEF : 491,365,374,000
HK$1,365,374,000) because the net asset value of the BIT) 2 IEETIRE REWHE A

respective subsidiaries were estimated to be less than their RIAMERRE °

carrying amounts.

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free HfE ARz AEER 28K
and have no fixed terms of repayment. 5 [E] F B -

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note TEWB AR 2B NI SRR
47 to the financial statements. FE47

During the year, the Group disposed of its entire equity FR AEBHERBLEARAR -
interests in Think Right Limited, Head & Shoulders Securities HEFEEARARNMNREEERBRA
Limited and Cheung’s Gold Traders Limited. Further details B2 AERD - AEHEZHE—
of these disposals are included in note 40 to the financial SR EE N SRR E40 o
statements.
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20. INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY-
CONTROLLED ENTITY

20. —EHEEHTEES

Group
rEEH
2010 2009
—E2-FF —EETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Share of net assets EIEFEE - -
Loan to a jointly-controlled entity ¥ —RERES
PEZER 1,976 1,976
1,976 1,976
Provision for impairment DRIERE L] (1,976) (1,976)

BT BHRREGEEZERTER
MERABTTREBNRINE B E2%5T
B WRBREER - EFZRA - BF
HEZEHEEZEREHRD 2HR
B RESZAREFLEZEHT
Eraam - BRI ERZ AT ERE -

The loan to a jointly-controlled entity is unsecured, interest-
bearing at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 2% per
annum and repayable on demand. In the opinion of the
directors, balances with the jointly-controlled entity have
been fully impaired because the operation of the jointly-
controlled entity is declining and the likelihood of
recoverability is low.
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20. INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY-
CONTROLLED ENTITY (continued)

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity at 30 April 2010
are as follows:

20.

Effective

Place of

equity
interest

incorporation/ attributable

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

—BHEEHEE ES

(&)

AZARZHCER _—_T-FTFMA=
THZFFBWOT

The Group’s
percentage The Group’s
of voting percentage

registration  to the Group power of profit
Business FMARL/ AEE  AEEER sharing Principal
Name structure 2R Btz ZREE by . | activity
£ EBRE EXBE BBRRA AAt FE A5 % F TEXEHR
sunArt Entertainment Limited Corporate Hong Kong 50% 50% 50% Entertainment
(“sunArt’) NG N R

Since the year ended 30 April 2007, the Group discontinued
the recognition of its share of losses of sunArt because the
share of losses of it had exceeded the Group’s interest
therein. The Group’s accumulated unrecognised share of
losses of sunArt for the year ended 30 April 2010 was
HK$1,967,000 (2009: HK$1,961,000).

BHE-_ZT+FHUA=THLFE
B AEBETHEREE(GsunArtY
B8 - B AEhsunArt 2 BIBE BB AR
EERERZERD - AEBREZEZ
T-ZFEMA=Z+TRHIEFERAHE
R 2 FE{hsunArt 2 518 /51,967,000
B (ZZEZNF 1,961,000 7T) °
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20. INTERESTS IN A JOINTLY-

20. —EHEEHTEES

CONTROLLED ENTITY (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

(&)

TR B AR B KRR S X 2 75

information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities: BERHE -
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Share of the jointly-controlled entity’s ~ JEAf5 5% T R #2813
assets and liabilities: ZEENBE:
Current assets RBEE 17 21
Non-current assets FERBEE - 9
Current liabilities mEasE (3,950) (3,950)
Net liabilities FAE (3,933) (3,920)
Share of the jointly-controlled entity’s  FE{h 5% T [F3% I
results: SEELE
Revenue WA - -
Other income H Uz A - 30
- 30
Total expenses S 4858 (13) (193)
Tax 18 - -
Loss after tax Brfi1& B 18 (13) (163)
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. BE RN R 2=
Group Company
rEH NN
2010 2009 2010 2009

—2-2F _—TTNF ZFT-BF _—TTNF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR THT TET TAT

Share of net assets BIEFEE 13,829 75,001 = -
Goodwill on acquisition WEEE HE 2,968 2,447 = -
16,797 77,448 - -
Loans to associates BYBENBIZER 25,470 5,133 =
Due from associates JE Ui B 8 0 B FRTE 982 1,398 =
43,249 83,979 - 5
Provision for impairment HERE (3,096) (897) - -
40,153 83,082 - 5
Less: Current portion w  BIEIER
Loans to associates BYBENAIZER 1,536 1,536 = -
Due from associates JE U B = 1 B R0R 131 28 -
1,667 1,564 - 5
Provision for impairment B (1,037) (897) - -
630 667 - 5
Non-current portion FERNEAER{n 39,523 82,415 = -
The loans to associates included HK$1,536,000 (2009: 451,636,000 L (ZFETNF -
HK$1,536,000) that are unsecured, interest-bearing with 1,536,000/870) &% THE AR 2ER
interest charged at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus DEERRERBETHREBENEINF LS
2% per annum and repayable on demand. In addition, Ko%atE - WIRBSKER o 1A - &
included in loans to associates are a shareholder’s loan T HE & AR 2 BB 420,337,000
amounted to approximately HK$20,337,000, which is BILZBRRER - ZERTEERA -
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. RERILRERKEE -
The due to an associate included in the Group’s current AEERBEERIEHETEL12,0008
liabilities totalling approximately HK$12,000 (2009: Nil) is T(ZETNF : &) 2N —fHlE
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of NAFIE - HEER - 2B REETE
repayment. B o
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 1. BENT 2R (E)
(continued)
Other than the aforementioned, the balances with associates BraraiEoN - EEE N E Z BERER
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of AEERR - 2B REERTEZRS - A
repayment. Because the timing of repayment cannot be RERFHBEZEEETE A27R
determined with reasonable certainty, it is not considered REBEBEATFEERTK -

meaningful to disclose their fair value.

Particulars of the associates are as follows: i /N = = (N

Percentage of

ownership
Place of Particulars of interest
Business incorporation/ issued  attributable to
Name structure registration shares held the Group Principal activities
rEE
B3l FEE®T  EhEZHEEE
£ E3/3 07 B R4 FE BRADL TEXHK
Asia Vigour Productions Corporate Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 48% Producing, organising
Limited* NG N HK$1 each and promoting
BELMGARE SREEIST live concerts
BRAR ERK BEERERRER
Asia Vigour (Holdings) Corporate British Virgin Ordinary shares of 48% Investment holding
Limited* N Islands US$1 each REZR
RERNHES SREEIET
ERR
Gain Hill Investments Corporate Hong Kong  Ordinary shares of 30% Investment holding
Limited NG BE HK$1 each REZR
HEREERAR ShREEIST
ERR
A RNERBRAT Corporate People’s RMB1,000,000 30% Restaurant
A7 Republic of China ARE Z8
hEARLNE 1,000,0007T
Sun Finance Company Corporate Hong Kong  Ordinary shares of 49% Money lending
Limited* DA BE HK$1 each EX
AGBEREEERD A SREEIET
AR
* Statutory audits of these companies are not performed by * ZERRIWIEHBRE SR ESHATE
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng. TEEEZ °

134



ANNUAL REPORT 2009/2010 —2& A, —E T FF1f

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R B o

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFFMA=+H

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. BE QT 2R (8)
(continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial THREMAEERE R 2MBEER
information of the Group’s associates extracted from their HME (B HEERE) -

management accounts:

2010 2009
—E-2F ZTEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Assets BE 198,551 678,303
Liabilities Bf&E 173,018 376,221
Revenues KA 11,804 299,569
Profits o ) 18,486 38,265
On 10 September 2009, the Group acquired from an RZZFZNFNA+TH  AEEBER—
independent third party a 49% equity interest in Sun Finance HRE = W KRS B RR B 75 B IR
Company Limited at a total consideration of NAE49N AR BRER
HK$130,000,000, represented by HK$9,663,000 for the 130,000,000/8 7T * I EREEKELIHE
consideration of the sale shares and HK$120,337,000 for 1% {7 2 189,663,000/ 7T & $5 & IR 3R
the sale shareholder’s loan on a dollar for dollar basis. 2 E3120,337,000% 7T - BEAWEZ
Further details of the acquisition are disclosed in note 41(b) IR B mMKM TE41(0) A HEE -
to the financial statements.
On 30 October 2009, the Group dispose its entire interest RZEZNEFE+HAH=TH F~&EEB
infEFEBEED AR AR (“De-Nian”) by disposal of its BUA4E R (E70,000,0008 T HEH R
87.01% equity interest in Think Right Limited at a total BIEARATZ87.01%F AR @
consideration of HK$70,000,000. Further details of this EEREFRERMNBRAA ([12
disposal are disclosed in notes 40 to the financial Fl)zr2HEsm  BERELEZH
statements. BRI HmER M 40K E -
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

2. Mt EZKRE

INVESTMENTS
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E2-FF —EETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Unlisted equity investments in EEEZIE ETRRA
Hong Kong, at cost ®E KA E - 136
Less: Provision for impairment B ORERE - -
- 136
Unlisted equity investments outside BANUINZ IEETIRA
Hong Kong, at cost & - B ARE 17,661 17,661
Less: Provision for impairment B ORERE (17,661) (17,661)
- 136

FAREBERAZFRZRE @ BEW
EERAHEEzERKRE AYE
BEEZMAXREE -

The above investments consist of investments in equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale
financial investments and have no fixed maturity date or
coupon rate.

HREEAFEMGTEEEKR - AR
RAIEERRAFETREAISENE &
ZEREN S ME RHE T AERIREA
HBRRERE

The investments are measured at cost less impairment at
the end of each reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

BE_ZTAFNA=THILFE
EE —TE 491,843,000 JT 2 )& 1B #
15 o

For the year ended 30 April 2009, a provision for impairment
of approximately HK$1,843,000 had been made.
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23. INVENTORIES 23. 78
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Finished goods 2P m 130 130
24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 24. EWBR X
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FET
Accounts receivable: FEUAR R -
— from securities, futures, forex — BF - HE - HME
and bullion dealing services rESBERDG 271,098 66,681
— from money lending operations — ERER 575 605
— from trading operations — BEEB 160 56,406
— from corporate and other operations — &% K EH 2% 37 33
271,870 123,725
Provision for impairment DERIERE L] (1,925) (40,107)
269,945 83,618

Included in accounts receivable are loans of approximately
HK$141,819,000 granted to independent third parties by
the Group, for the purpose of financing subscriptions of
equity securities. The loans are secured by the shares to
be subscribed under initial public offering and interest
bearing at a range from 1.30% to 1.65% per annum.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the loans
together with interest accrued thereon have been fully settled
in May 2010.

EWERBEAEBRE TBILIE=H
#9141,819,0008 T2 B + LA AR
BRABLFBME - EXRUABREERA
RAEETUREB RN - WiRFN =
1.30% % 1.65%T B o IR & BRI E 4
& BEFREREAMNEER=_Z—F
FRHABEER -
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 24. FEUR BE 2k (&)

SECURITIES, FUTURES, FOREX AND BULLION HE -HE - HMEREESEER

138

DEALING SERVICES

The Group allows a credit period of up to the settlement
dates of the respective securities, futures, forex and bullion
transactions or a credit period mutually agreed with the
contracting parties. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Loans for
margin financing are secured by the pledge of customers’
securities as collateral. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by management. In view of the aforementioned
and that the Group’s accounts receivable relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Overdue accounts receivable
bear interest with reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime
rate.

MONEY LENDING OPERATIONS

The Group allows a credit period mutually agreed with the
contracting parties. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management. Accounts
receivable are interest-bearing at a rate mutually agreed with
the contracting parties.

%

AEEGETHEARES - B8 5
EREERGZRXBBZEEN %
MHOETHEMEZEESR - 82%
FHEGREERSE -AKERNE
FEREREREEBUKENR - HK
BEERBRERE - FRBEEXR
NEREPF 2B ELEMMmIELE
R o BERAEESR AR E IR A B BT o
ERN BT R kAR E 2 R R R

SREPAM FAUBMEREETE
ERkzEE - BHRKERSRE

TTHREENEER -

BRER

AEERTERGOZTHHEEWEZE
EY - BREFHERSEERE -
AEBENGRHEREZEEREER
W - BB EERRBRERK
BHAESRHEREABEHRT - B

RGNS THERE 2 8 X5t

B o
15N
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

TRADING OPERATIONS

Trading operations was discontinued during the year. The

balance included an amount due from a customer and the

Board believe that the outstanding amount will be settled in

the coming year.

CORPORATE AND OTHER OPERATIONS

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its

outstanding receivable to minimise credit risk. Overdue

balances are reviewed regularly by management.

An aged analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end

of the reporting period, based on the settlement due date

and net of provision for impairment, is as follows:

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

24. JES\I‘I&/E\E (nﬁ)

BEEXBNEARILE - BERFTA
BEPRF  EFGMHEREERES
RIRFHELS

EEREMER

AEEHNHFBIRETERERE
W - BRBEERBRBRERE
BHAHRREEABE SR -

REB RIS B E TR 2 EUEE X
(MBRFERE) REED A 2 BRR
DT -

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-=5F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx FET

Repayable: AR T HRES -

Current to 1 month BNEfZE — (& A 266,306 62,597
1 to 3 months —Z=={8A 1,965 4,257
3 months to 1 year “EHAE—%F 424 15,464
Over 1 year —FpF 1,250 1,300
269,945 83,618
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The movements in provision for impairment of accounts
receivable are as follows:

24. FEW AR ()

EMSRFORER B2 E BT

Group

AEE
2010 2009
—E-2F ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At beginning of year R F ) 40,107 2,851
Impairment losses recognised E#ERBEEE 707 38,952
Amount written off as uncollectible M sE 7 mOE N B 2 FRIE (38,034) (493)
Impairment losses reversed K CDRERE (365) (1,208)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEWBAR (490) -
At end of year NGRS 1,925 40,107

Included in the above provision for impairment of accounts
receivable is a provision for individually impaired accounts
receivable of approximately HK$1,925,000 (2009:
approximately HK$40,107,000) with a carrying amounts
before provision of approximately HK$2,958,000 (2009:
approximately HK$59,900,000). The individually impaired
accounts receivable relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the possibility of recovery is minimal. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

it ERERFORERE 2 EERRE
JE W BR 3 2 BB 49 81,925,000 7T
(ZZZTNF : 440,107,000/ 7T)
ZERRESBHEA2CEEEN A
2,958,000 L (ZFETNF : &
59,900,000/ 7T) © &R 7 (B FE W R 3K
HApE A BF B R 2 2 % P B U a] g it
TRZEWESRER - AEEBW AR
ZEEHRFE AR R SREE M
SEMEFEHE ©
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The aged analysis of the accounts receivable that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

24, W ARFR (&)

KRR BRE 2 YRR 2 BRER DT a0
T~

Group

AEE
2010 2009
—E-2F ZTEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired REEATRARBE 240,011 51,407
Less than 1 month past due —{& A W B Ef 26,284 9,923
1 to 3 months past due —ZE =@ AR 1,942 1,842
3 months to 1 year past due =& A= —F 5| Hf 51 7
Over 1 year past due —F LA B H 624 646
268,912 63,825

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
Directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The Group’s accounts receivable at 30 April 2010 included
amounts of approximately HK$160,000 (2009:
approximately HK$19,008,000) which are denominated in
United States Dollar.

REBER IR ARBE 2 8 AR o0 B3 HA 4
RS2 EREFP AR -

BIEMERIRE 2 IR % 2 B
SERBRUTELEZBITFE
e RESBERR  ARAESFR
B RREEKRNE AREEEX
WARBLEBANE  ARFEKDA
BATBENE - SEARELER
BB o

AEER-_ZE—ZTFNA=TAHZE
KWERBIEAETEBEZRELN
160,000 T (ZEZTNF : &
19,008,000 7T) °
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 25. AT RIE - FIE R HAMAE
OTHER RECEIVABLES i BR =X
Group Company
r5E PN
2010 2009 2010 2009

—2-2F _TTNF ZB-BF _TTIF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER THET TEx TR

Prepayments Bt%E 2,184 0,196 88 163
Deposits HEE3 22,174 6,554 3,155 -
Other receivables HoAth UK BR 5K 124 3,074 - 68
24,482 11,824 3,243 231
None of the above assets is neither past due nor impaired. FEEMARINBIIARRE - 5TAL
The financial assets included in the above balances relate AR 2 & BhE B BT HA A R GREC 8%
to receivables for which there was no recent history of ZEWERR B -
default.
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 25. A RIE - AT RHAME
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) W BR K (&)
The movements in provision for impairment of other HiEWERFRERE 2SS0 T -

receivables are as follows:

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At beginning of year REFEH) - -
Impairment losses recognised EERBEEE 894 -
Amount written off as uncollectible W AEENE 2 5IE (894) -
At end of year R - -
Included in the above for impairment of other receivables is M EMERREZFRERERREER
a provision for individual other receivables that defaulted in ER BB Ea R R 2 B - 7%
repayments and these receivables were not expected to ZRKEFRBH ISR KE - XEE
be recovered. The group does not hold any collateral or WARB % FESBRITF BT BRI

other credit enhancements over these balances. EUE A (5 & MNSRIEHE ©
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26. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

26. RV EFABRRERZR
rERE

Group

TEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET

Listed equity investments, EARAKRE -
at market value: RE -

Hong Kong BA 3,282 3,458
Elsewhere H by = 32,037
3,282 35,495

As at 30 April 2009, included in the Group’s equity
investments was an amount of HK$32,037,000 which
represented approximately a 8% equity interest in the
common shares of GobiMin, Inc., a company incorporated
in Canada and listed on the TSX Venture Exchange that
was disposed of during the year ended 30 April 2010.

The above equity investments at 30 April 2010 and 2009
were classified as held for trading.

As at 30 April 2010, certain of the Group’s listed equity
investments in Hong Kong of HK$3,021,000 (2009:
HK$1,637,000) were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 31).

The market value of equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss at the date of approval of these financial
statements was approximately HK$2,722,000.

144

R_ZEZNFMA=+AH it AAE
B WA E 232,037,000 7T © 15
GobiMin, Inc.E B 2 #)18%R% 7N #E
# + GobiMin, Inc. & — R II& K
R BEREZMEEFEFRFTAIER L
MZzAs WHREBEZT—ZTFWMA
“t+HLEFELE -

D EBRARER B EFR-_2F
ANERAZHARSEABEEE -

R-_ZE—ZTFMA=+H  NEHEE
£3,021,0008 L (ZZEZE L F :
1,637,000 7T) 2 & T &S LMK
BE  EREEETAEBRZRITE
BT LA (fI3E31) ©

RELENEMBERRZB - ZFRA
BRERRAFEFABRERZTENS
2,722,000/ 7T °
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27.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK TRUST ACCOUNT BALANCES

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
licensed banks to hold clients’ monies arising from its normal
course of business licensed by the SFC. The Group has
classified these clients’ monies as bank trust account
balances under the current assets section of the statement

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFFMA=+H

27. RITEEERF &gk

AEBRFERIRITHARBILETLR
P AEREFPREREE S EMET
ZEBZ EFELBRPREL 2K
He AREBHETFPREADELSY
BRRKRZMBEER T ZIRITIEFE

P& URIERANTFPRIAZ
EERSIRE LB E 2 AR M
RENTHBTFS 2HERE - A&
BrSUEFPREETEAGZE

monies to settle its own obligations. £ o

of financial positions and recognised the corresponding
accounts payable to the respective clients on the ground
that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation of these
client’s monies. The Group is not permitted to use the clients’

RITEREFEHRZIEREREIRYF
EHE -

The carrying amounts of the bank trust account balances
approximate to their fair values.

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. BE KBRS EEHEBERE

AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS R 1T 17 ™K
Group Company
rEH PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZTF —TTHhEF ZEBE-ZTH —ZTTHHF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET FTAER FET
Cash and bank balances Be MRITH 45,528 58,314 1,626 78
Time deposits EETF 10,628 10,625 = -
56,156 68,939 1,626 78
Less: Pledged deposits for B IRITEX
bank overdrafts BEMER
(notes 31) GED) (10,628) (10,625) - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekAeEEIEREE 45,528 58,314 1,626 78
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28.

29.

146

—E-FEMA=1A

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
(continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payable as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the settlement due
date, is as follows:

28. RERBASEEHRERE
E#HBRITER &)

FRIRTTZRERIBRITE B FFHA
KRECFBNE - REAKEHES
BRI - B E RFRERE
H—HE=EATEF  UDRRER
Z R HE B AN R AR B o IRTT
BB MEEMERDEROHEER
IR IEEBRIFZRTT -

29. FE {3 AR X
7K 85 50 9 5 D 2 B 2 A9 B

REEINHBEZRESMTAOT

(Al

Group

rEH

2010
—E-ZF
HK$°000
FTHET

2009
—EETNF
HK$’000
FHET

Current to 1 month BNEfZE — & A

307,900 225,098

Included in accounts payable of approximately
HK$245,872,000 (2009: approximately HK$156,398,000)
was interest-bearing at bank deposit saving rates (2009:
bank deposit saving rates) and repayable on the settlement
day of the relevant trades or upon demand.

B 5T A4245,872,0008 T (ZEZ 1
F : #9156,398,000 7T) 7 FETBR K
RBTREFFIMNEFE(ZEEAN
FRTBEEFRAE) - WERBH
BEZRKBSIREKEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 55 R AR BT

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

30. At EN IR R EFEH

Group Company
N3 ¥ NN

2010 2009 2010 2009
-5 —ITThF ZB-BF —ITTIhF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT TET TERT FET
Others payables HA R ERR 1,031 881 870 18
Accruals fEEtE A 9,938 9,758 2,467 2,436
10,969 10,639 3,337 2,454

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an

average term of three months. The Group’s and the

Company'’s other payables and accruals approximate to their

fair values.

H A T BR R AET R P XA
BZEA - REBERARQE 2 EAME
MEFEEHERARERFERS -
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 1.5t ERTEE
BORROWINGS
Group Company
148 103
2010 2009 2010 2009
Zg-3F “EENE %-3F “EENE
Effective interest rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBA=(E) B4R THn ThnL T#n ThnL
2010 2009 2010 2009
-g-%% “ETNE %-3% Z3ENE
Current k2
Bank loans - secured ROER-BHA
fote ) (H3tb) 0626 2655 2011 2010 142410 5074 - -
I
Bank overdrafts - secured ~ R3E% -EHH 6.0 60 Ondemand On demand 1,583 8445 = -
REX REX
143,993 13,619 - -
Non-current 05
Bank loans - secured RAEN-EHA 26 55 2015 2015 6,84 7,604 - -
ZE-1f “F-1f
150,277 21,213 - -
Group Company
RE FN/NE|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FEF —TTHhF ZBE-TF —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FAET TERT FAT
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans and ARTIIHEEERE
overdrafts repayable: RITEFREX :
Within one year or on demand ~ —FRIEE K 143,993 13,519 = -
In the second year F-F 1,447 1,410 - -
In the third to fifth years, EZFREF
inclusive (BEEEMSF) 4,573 4,456 - -
Over five years BRhF 264 1,828 - -

150,277 21,213 - -
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The Group has overdraft facilities and secured bank loans
as at the end of the reporting period, which are secured by:

(i)

(iv)

the pledge of time deposits of Mr. Cheung Yan Lung
of HK$2,000,000 (2009: HK$2,000,000) (note 46(b));

the pledge of time deposits of the Group of
approximately HK$10,628,000 (2009: approximately
HK$10,625,000) (note 28);

the Group’s leasehold land and buildings, which have
an aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting
period of approximately HK$21,884,000 (2009:
approximately HK$23,494,000) (note 15);

the pledge of certain of the Group’s investments in
listed securities of approximately HK$3,021,000
(2009: approximately HK$1,637,000) (note 26); and

personal guarantees executed by Mr. Cheung Yan
Lung, Mr. Haywood Cheung and certain executives
of a subsidiary of the Group (note 46(b)).

30 April 2010

FFRBRITEE (&

31.

B RS RAR M EE

—E-FEMA=1A

(@ AEERBREHETERZBEENR
BEMRITERBIA T ZREER

(i)

(iv)

RABELEZ EHETFRX
2,000,000 7T (ZEZTNF -
2,000,000 7T) 2 & 18 (P 3%
46(b))

AN E 77 504910,628,000
BT (ZZEZTNAE 8
10,625,000/ 7T) 2 3 (b 7
28)

AEFB7HAELHMNET B
WERE AR 2 REAEY
521,884,000 T (ZZEZF 1
£ @ #923,494,00078 7T) (M3
16)

AEEBRETEHFZEBETRE
#9/53,021,0008 7T (ZZEE 1
& : #91,637,000/8 7T) Z H i
(Mt3r26) « &

HERABREL RERELER
AEE-RMBARZETIT
BABEHZ B AR (M

46(b)) °

& ASRTTE K2 %A A141,000,000
BT RHRITEE - ZEREMU
N-ZE-—ZTFENF=+HE R M
EREEHAE 2 RIBRE XA
BERTZHRIZSEERRE  £8F
0.60%E0.65%FT 8 ' WER T —
THERARHEE -

gEoh - AR R A RS IR EAR LA
EEZETRITERRBES EIRHE
%49,244,0008 L (ZEZF N F
27,413,000/ 70) < A RER - R4
9,277, 0008 L (ZEZENF - 4
21,208,000/ 70) EHENAH - NAFE
ERE RATEBBEPRIILZ L
MARERTEELEEREE AR
REFEEARERZ A AL TE
j( o

AEEFRBRTEEZFRAERER
FEMEE -

(b)  Included in bank loans are the amounts of short-term bank (b)
borrowings of HK$141,000,000 which was secured by a
charge over securities subscribed under initial public offering
and margin deposit as required for initial public offering as
at 30 April 2010, interest-bearing at a range from 0.60% to
0.65% per annum and was fully repaid in May 2010.

In addition, the Company has provided corporate
guarantees on certain of the Group’s bank loans and
overdraft facilities of up to HK$49,244,000 (2009:
HK$27,413,000) of which approximately HK$9,277,000
(2009: approximately HK$21,208,000) was utilised at the
end of the reporting period. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, no material liabilities would arise from the
above corporate guarantees which arose in the ordinary
course of business and the fair values of the corporate
guarantees granted by the Company were immaterial.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings approximate to their fair values.
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32. FINANCE LEASES PAYABLE 32. EmEMRY
The Group leases certain of its property, plant and AEEREXKEERAAEETY
equipment for its business operations. These leases are ¥ BMELZRE ZFHEANSERM
classified as finance leases and have a remaining lease term EMHL - FRAEA13E56EA (ZF
of 13 to 56 months (2009: 25 to 47 months). TNF  25F47MA) T
At 30 April 2010, the total future minimum lease payments RZIE—ZFFWA=+H " @EHY
under finance leases and their present values were as CARKERCEBELIBERNT ¢
follows:

Present value of

Minimum minimum lease
lease payments payments
REAE EEHSRAE
2010 2009 2010 2009

“2-%F “—TTNF ZB-FF _—TINF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Ti#n THET TER TET

Amounts payable under BREREROER
finance leases: THIER 52 1 2 508 -
Within one year —FR 498 347 358 276
In the second year BF 310 347 199 300
In the third to fifth years, EZFRF
inclusive (BEERMT) 479 220 369 190
1,287 914 926 766
Future finance charges HEREEH (361) (148)
Total net finance lease payables JE{I Rl & FH 4 48 % 58 926 766
Portion classified as SIEREI B E
current liabilities ZEHH (358) (276)
Non-current portion SERNERER 568 490
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33. DUE TO MINORITY

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

B.AXVERRZ2RE LY

SHAREHOLDERS/LOAN FROM A RERE K

MINORITY SHAREHOLDER

The amounts due to minority shareholders are unsecured, RAOBRE 2 RIBTEER - 28 K
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. E[E TTIE G o

The loan from a minority shareholder is unsecured, interest- LERBEERTERE 2B RBA
free and not repayable within twelve months from the end RBEBRETAEE T —EARERE -

of the reporting period.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due to minority ROVBERZZBRLEBRRER Y
shareholders and loan from a minority shareholder REEREQAFEES

approximate to their fair values.

34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 4. EEBIEEE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year AEBZEEFBEAEREANZES
are as follows: W
Depreciation
allowance in excess of
related depreciation
FEREBLEBINE
2010 2009
—E-2F ZTEENF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At beginning of year NG 445 862
Deferred tax charge/(credited) to REZRLEHR BN KR K
income statement Nk GtA) 22
during the year (note 10) (M5E10) 27 417)
At end of year NGRS 472 445

151



[ S

)
()

Ly

!

=7

/g

Ib

-

Simsen International Corporation Limited X717 B & (25%) AR A 7

B ISR M aE

30 April 2010

—E-FEMA=1A

34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
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(continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$248,853,000 (2009: approximately
HK$245,487,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
agains which the tax losses can be utilised.

At 30 April 2010, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2009: Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s
subsidiaries, associates or jointly-controlled entities as the
Group has no liability to additional tax should such amounts
be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. ELEBIREE (&)

AEEBERBEACHEERNA
248,853,000 L (ZEZTNF +
245,487,000 7L) @ ZE SR ER
HREREELEBB AR Z K RER
PaH BEERBEELARZES
BTUER  WIHERZEBEEE
R—EEZHBAR  WRETK
0] BE & BE A FE AR B I A K S B T8 /&S
18 -

MR-_ZE—ZTFMNA=1+H  ARAE
lﬁ4ﬁﬁﬁ$’§lm¢%®ﬂ /N

HEE S ERE LR 2 BT
E%Fﬁ@EﬁmEZﬁ%mﬁ’m

VEIMEARERELRBEEAE (=

TTNF  HE) o

$ﬂ7ﬁk$§ﬁ % B30 4 E A (T {]
FrisfiEg R -
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35. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE 35. REIRRIE S #1E
PAYMENTS
Group Company
AEE VNN
2010 2009 2010 2009

—2-8F _TTNF ZB-BF _TTIF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

THER T THx TiEx
At beginning of year RERD 3,368 2,097 101 27
(Write-back of provision)/provision (Biskn) /BiE (185) 371 26 74
Amounts utilised during the year FRPALE (22 - = -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBLT (16) - - -
At end of year RER 3,145 3,368 127 101
Portion classified as current liabilities JERBE R HD - - - -
Non-current portion EHEBHLS 3,145 3,368 127 101
The Group provides for the probable future long service AEBEREF BRAUEARERE SR
payments expected to be made to employees under the BIEPIZS FRE 2 REARSG © 1EHD
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, as further explained Bl MBHRAWT24EMESTE
under the heading “Other employee benefits” in note 2.4 to FISFMFRA - BEEBETIRERES
the financial statements. The provision is based on the best RIEZERAS B ZREHETER
estimate of the probable future payments which have been BRI R BEZARIEmMSEIED
earned by the employees from their services to the Group ZAdEr °

to the end of the reporting period.
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36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. g A<
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Shares [N
Authorised: EERA
50,000,000,000 50,000,000,000/%
(2009: 50,000,000,000) —ETHE
ordinary shares 50,000,000,000%)
of HK$0.01 each FREEC.O1E L EiEik 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid BET R
1,083,044,000 1,083,044,0000%
(2009; 1,083,044,000) —ETAF
ordinary shares 1,083,044,000/%)
of HK$0.01 each BREEC.O1EB T TR 10,830 10,830
SHARE OPTIONS BRE

37.

154

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included
in note 37 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may, on
or before 3 March 2012, grant options to eligible
participants, including the Company’s directors, other
employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to
the Group, customers of the Group, and any minority
shareholders in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme
became effective on 4 March 2002 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

37.

AR B BIAET S 2 B ER T R
RMFES7 o

BRReEsta

A D F R — A R B (TR
) EEAHAEEZRHEEE
BB AEMSRERGADREE
% -

BIEZTE ARAEEATR_ZT—
TF=ZAZHRZAIMAEIRREE
(BEARFRES - AEBEHMES
AEBEMIRBHEEY  AEBE
FUARARRQRME AR Z AWM DE
R)BREERE - ZtE8lH =TT =F
“AHBRENR  WHZABTEE
BAF - AR REUESEL &
FTBRAN
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at the date of adoption
of the Scheme on 4 March 2002, i.e. 22,721,600 shares.
No share options have been granted under the Scheme
since its adoption. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at the exercise date. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at anytime or
with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors of the Company, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than
10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors of the Company, but may not be less than the
higher of (i) the SEHK closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the share options; and (ji) the average
SEHK closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

No option has been outstanding and granted under the
share option scheme during the year ended 30 April 2010
(2009: Nil).

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFFMA=+H

37. BT (&)

BIE AT 8] M AR R R ) E b BE AR 4
TEIMTRE R K 2 BB 2 xS AR 1D X
B TEERARRR BT _F=
A BH#EMZTEE H 2 B8R M
10% (B122,721,6000% B 1) ° B ER4Y
ZEtBILAR - WEREZT R A
IR AE - FE(EM+ =@ A B A -
BIEZAEAENAEKRLREERY
RN BB D RAEE A
ARARTTEBHRZERTRMDI%E
fR o AR BT B A BB EifR 58
R AINEERRERRAS
FHEAE o

AARBIES  TBTHAE 2
PR SR F 2 B8R AR B
B BAREARBELFATESR
JE e

BEAN - s pAEfa] + — & A BAfE R | X
NRAEERR BIUFRTEFHRK
FZ BB AR L 2 E B RER
BERD  BRARBEREEITR
70.1%3% 4 {8 #2 485,000,000/ 7T (1R
BARRABRMNIREBRES B ZE

RETE) - AIMBARRERRERRK
-t

BRENHIXL BB 21ERE
o MR EARERAAZNEHE
TZREBHRE - EREBERIEZTTE
HAARRESEETE XA R —BREF
TTEBRITE - YREHBARER S
AT FE R -

BREZITEEHRARRERETE -
BAAFER () AR BB IR B Ik
2 HAEBRATZ WHE - Ri)ARBIK
MREBERR L AR AER 5 HER
RHAZFEHEREZERE °

BE_T-ZTFNA=FTHILEE
A BBRCERT BI08 B W ARTTE M
ABRLZBERE(CSZTAE &) -

155



Simsen International Corporation Limited X717 B & (25%) AR A 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M aE

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFHA=+H

38. RESERVES

156

(A) GROUP

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the excess
of the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 1994
prior to the listing of the Company’s shares (the
“Reorganisation”), over the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-
foreign joint venture enterprises, a portion of profits of
the Group’s associates which are established in the
People’s Republic of China, subject to the discretion
of their board of directors, were transferred to the
general reserve. Subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant regulations in Mainland China and the
articles of associations of the relevant companies, the
general reserve may be used to set off losses or for
capitalisation as paid-up capital.

38. f# e

(A) ~&EH

AEERAFERAEFEZ
BEREEEH2NEE R
K -

REE 2 HABBIEN AR B
D EMRMKIE— AN F 2R E
EAR(TEH]) P iEH B A R
EE - B ALREMETZ
ARBIRMEEIERE -

REBETINGELR ZHBA
BIER - AEERBEARK
B SL 2 Bt 2 2 B 2 BB 0 Vi A
ERBREBEEIRTERE—R
- ETERTEAREZERH
ERNBBLAR Z EBERME
AETRHEZERT - —REEA
FRIESHHBEIETHEER
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38. RESERVES (continued) 38. 1 (1)
(B) COMPANY (B) &2 ]
Retained
earnings/
Share (Accumulated
premium  Contributed loss)
account surplus  REBEF/ Total
R4 RER BABH  (RTHER) wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERL FET FET TET
At 1 May 2008 RZZENFHA—H 186,689 30,992 138,230 355,911
Total comprehensive FEXHRAXBE
expense for the year - - (254,278) (254,278)
At 30 April 2009 RZZENFNA=TH 186,689 30,992 (116,048) 101,633
Total comprehensive EERENRAE
income for the year - - 77,225 77,225
At 30 April 2010 RZE-ZFENA=Z+H 186,689 30,992 (38,823 178,858

The Company’s contributed surplus mainly represents
the excess of the net asset value of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation refer to note
38(a) to the financial statements over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefore.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the Company’s contributed surplus is
currently not available for distribution.

RRRBZHABBREBIEARFIRE
B M5 R P 51 38(a) Pt 2 EAE AT IS
MEBARcEERE  BHALRE
MBETZARRRMEEZEZRE - 1R
BARE-NWN—FRADE (KE
7)) ARBZBABBRK TR AR
Ik -
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION

40

158

During the year ended 30 April 2009, the Group further
acquired 0.6% and 1.19% equity interests of 2 XA
BEEBBERAF(EE)and EMKBEECEBER AT
(“BE #K”) respectively from minority shareholders at cash
consideration in aggregate of HK$23,000. Immediately after
% and B # became 60% owned
subsidiaries of the Group, and there were no goodwill and

the acquisition,

profit or loss arising from the acquisition.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 1 September 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
with Miss Lu Sheng Ying, an independent third party, to
dispose of 87.01% equity interest of Think Right Limited,
being entire equity interest of Think Right Limited owned by
the Group, at a total consideration of HK$70,000,000. As
at the date of disposal, Think Right Limited held 25% equity
interest of De-Nian. Further details of the disposal are set
out in a circular of the Company dated 23 October 2009.
The disposal was completed on 30 October 2009.

On 27 November 2009, the Group entered into an
agreement with (i) iWin Limited, a company beneficially
owned by Mr. Haywood Cheung and Mr. Stanley Cheung,
to dispose of 100% equity interest of Cheung’s Gold Traders
Limited at a consideration of HK$5,000,000; and (i) Tracing
Paper International Limited, a company beneficially owned
by Mr. Haywood Cheung and Mr. Stanley Choi, to dispose
of 100% equity interest of Head & Shoulders Securities
Limited, at a consideration of HK$31,000,000. Further
details of the disposal are set out in a circular of the
Company dated 15 January 2010. The disposal was
completed on 10 February 2010 and 12 March 2010
respectively.

40.
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40. L EH B 7 (&)
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(continued)
Cheung’s Head &
Think Gold  Shoulders
Right Traders  Securities
Limited Limited Limited Total
RR&% BEHES
BERRAF BRAT BRAT st
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Net assets disposed of: T EFEE
Property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% B MR & - 8 283 291
Intangible assets myEE - - 550 550
Other long term assets HMRMEE - 2,000 1,550 3,550
Interest in associates N A=l 98,483 - - 98,483
Available-for-sale investment AHEEZRE - 136 - 136
Amount due from the Group e - AN 5 B 2 R 15 - - 15
Prepayments, deposits BRFIE -T2k
and other receivables Hh fE U R K - 226 385 611
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeFERE - 2,492 28,593 31,085
Accounts payable JE 1 BR 3R - - (87) (87)
Accruals and other payables ErBERAREMENER - (13) (618) (631)
Provision for RO 2EB
long service payments - (16) - (16)
Minority interests LR RERS (12,791) - - (12,791)
85,707 4,833 30,656 121,196
Related exchange fluctuation BAEL&E
reserve reclassified to SREABRE
profit or loss 5,947 - - 5,947
Cost of disposal HEMAK 483 - - 483
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of HEMBARZ
subsidiaries Wz (E1E) (22,137) 167 344 (21,626)
70,000 5,000 31,000 106,000
Satisfied by: XA
Cash Be 70,000 5,000 31,000 106,000
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HEWNBARZHAES KRS EMEIER
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: MAFREZ DT -
Cash consideration BeRE 70,000 5,000 31,000 106,000
Cost of disposal HEMA (483) - - (483)
Cash and bank balance Tt EH & RIRTTHE R
disposed of - (2,492) (28,593) (81,085)
Net inflow of cash and cash TEMNBARZEE R
equivalents in respect of ReSEEBERAFE
the disposal of subsidiaries 69,517 2,508 2,407 74,432

159



Simsen International Corporation Limited X717 B EE (3%28%) B R A 7

|

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R B o

30 April 2010 —ZZ—ZFWA=+H

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED M. FZERERERNTE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(A) MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS A) TEFBELRS
During the year, the Group entered into finance lease FRN - AEERIIZHOREER
arrangements in respect of property, plant and KB AE469,0008B T (ZEF N
equipment with a total capital value at the inception £ : 168,000 TT) 2% - HKFE
of the lease of HK$469,000 (2009: HK$168,000). NERETT R ERL L HE -

(b) On 10 September 2009, the Group acquired from an (b) R=ZETAFhA+AH ~&£E
independent third party a 49% equity interest in Sun M — &\ =5 W KI5 B
Finance Company Limited at a total consideration of B BRAF49% R AR - 82
HK$130,000,000 within which HK$70,000,000 were & £130,000,000% T * E
settled by the issuance of promissory note (note 21). 70,000,000/ 7T LA B 1774 7, Z 3%

A (HFEE21) ©

42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 42 W EE
Details of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts, which are REELEEEERZRITERLE
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 31 X2 HBEN B REMFEST -

to the financial statements.
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43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43. LAREE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not RS ER T AR - REVBRKIE
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: BEFHEZKABBRNAT
Company
YN
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Guarantees given to banks in KB A RIFTERE
connection with facilities granted MERITH A Z R
to subsidiaries 53,244 41,703

At 30 April 2010, the banking facilities granted to the
subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks by
the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$9,277,000 (2009: HK$21,208,000).

R-_ZE—ZTFMA=1+H  BARQT
MERITIE L ERME T B AR 28R
TIEEBEBAH9,277,0008 L (=
T AE ¢ 21,208,000/87C) °
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44. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 44. & & HAO T HE

45

162

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

AEERBEEHOLHEERET
WMAEYE - REBMZYEENZAE
HRF—EZ0%F -

A& B R e B A R AR IR T 51 HA
FEIM 2 ARG EEOAI N Z
ARKEHES@ENT :

2010 2009

—E-FF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FET

Within one year —F R 21,020 13,572

In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEZERF

(BREEEMF) 17,911 8,553

At end of year R 38,931 22,125
COMMITMENTS 45. F

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in
note 44 above, the Group had the commitments of
approximately HK$120,700,000 (2009: approximately
HK$16,829,000) and approximately HK$150,935,000
(2009: approximately HK$155,177,000) in respect of the
net open position of bullion contracts and forex contracts
undertaken in the ordinary course of business existing at
the end of the reporting period.

Save as disclosed above, the Group and the Company did
not have any other significant commitments as at the end
of the reporting period.

BR A | SCB s 445 il 2 45 & 0 49 &GE
Hh - RIRE BB TER - AEERA
BEBBRPIIUZFEAFEESS
H I HNE S 89,2 B HE R £120,700,000
BT (ZETNF : 416,829,000/
7T) K #9150,935,0008 T (ZEZ A,
F 1 #9155,177,000/87T) °

= 4t

B EXFHEEEIN RS HETE
B REBRARQRLEEHETME
88 KA o
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. EEBRAEALT 2R S

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) BRZEMBEREREME
the financial statements, the Group had the following LRGN REBR
material transactions with related parties during the BEATETZEAR
year:

S
2F
B W
2t
%

mF

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BT FHET FET
Management fee income B — A FEiE
received from a NAEZEBEBRA
related company (i) - 300
Employment compensation B AQAGESEZ
paid to the close family BEXFBZREERE
members of the directors
of the Company 1,531 1,605
Interest received from B —EE QA
an associate WER 2 F) 2 108 72
Notes: B 5T
()  Management fee income was received from a related () EBR—HEEEARZERBRAT
company based on the rate mutually agreed by both EREFHE 2L RET « 26 BE
parties. The related company is partially owned by Mr. NREBD REEELE LSS ©

Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley.
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

164

(b)

Other transactions with related parties:

(0

(it

(i)

Certain banking facilities granted to the
subsidiaries of the Company are secured by a
bank deposit of HK$2,000,000 (2009:
HK$2,000,000) granted by Mr. Cheung Yan Lung
and personal guarantees executed by Mr.
Cheung Yan Lung and Mr. Haywood Cheung,
and certain executives of a subsidiary of the
Group.

On 27 November 2009, the Group entered into
an agreement with iWin Limited, a company
beneficially owned by Mr. Haywood Cheung and
Mr. Stanley Cheung, to dispose of 100% equity
interest of Cheung’s Gold Traders Limited at a
consideration of HK$5,000,000. Further details
of the disposal are set out in a circular of the
Company dated 15 January 2010. The disposal
was completed on 10 February 2010.

On 27 November 2009, the Group entered into
an agreement with Tracing Paper International
Limited, a company beneficially owned by Mr.
Haywood Cheung and Mr. Stanley Choi, to
dispose of 100% equity interest of Head &
Shoulders Securities Limited, at a consideration
of HK$31,000,000. Further details of the disposal
are set out in a circular of the Company dated
15 January 2010. The disposal was completed
on 12 March 2010.

46. EEREAL 22X 5 ()

(b)

HARMEATETZEM

(0

(i

(i)

o

o

BYARRMBRARZET
EITRVE ISR A BB AR
it 7 $R 1717 5£2,000,000/%
T (ZETAEF 2,000,000
BIT) ARRABELEE - K
BERAEE RAEE B
NEHTITAB N 2 (6
ABREER -

RZTEZNF+—A=++
H - AEEHIWin Limited
(ARERAERKES

EXBEZAR) MW
# » LA {E5,000,000% 7T
PTERKSEBRRQA
100% Az - BEALE
BRI E—HHBIERAR
AEAE-_ZT—ZTF—A+
RBEZBEA - BEFIED
R-_ZE—ZTF_AF+H%E
;ﬁ °

RZZEZNF+—A=+L
H » K& & ETracing Paper
International Limited (F 312
BRI REBAE A Bl
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

()

Outstanding balances with related parties:

()  Detall of the Group’s loans to/from and balances
with its jointly controlled entities and associates
as at the end of reporting period are included in
notes 20 and 21 to the financial statements,
respectively.

(i) Details of the Group’s balances with a related
party and minority shareholders are included in
note 33 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

The directors are the key management of the
Company. Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.

B 55 R AR BT

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFFMA=+H

46. EEREAL 22X 5 (#)

(©

HAMBEALZRBERRE

() MIEMETHERS  KEE
BT/ REEARES R
KEnml B R EHFA
eSS E N 2
15 - 0 RI B B 1 R Y
FT20M21 °

iy AERE—FEEEALIR
VYRR 2 R B H R
ERERMIFEIS -

AEETZEERBABZHM
EZRANFEIBERABE - &

FHE — FF BRI H R
RHMIFES ©
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

166

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. T EMB AT 2 F1B
A 3R 2% HARS 32 TEHBARY
HEMT

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up ordinary

Percentage of

establishment and share capital/  equity attributable
operations registered capital to the Group
Name HMEY/2Y ERTRCALZER AEEEERE Principal activities
&R REX#HYE RA/HAREAZHE BAlt TEER
Cheer Gain International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 Investment holding
GERARRR BE 1007 REER
Clear Smart Investments British Virgin Islands/ US$100 60 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 100%TT REZR
RERGEE /BB
Champion Source Development Hong Kong HK$100 100 Investment holding
Limited B 1007 REER
BRERERAA
Excel Vision Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 Property holding for
FAERBRAR Bk 1,000% 7 rental purposes
NEREELERR
Firstmount International British Virgin Islands/ USS$1 100 Investment holding
Limited* Hong Kong 1% REZR
RERUEE/BE
Lee Fung Hong Bullion Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 100 Property holding
METERARAH ) 80,000,000/ 1t NERE
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFFMA=+H

47. T EME R T 2+ 15 (&)

Nominal value

Place of of issued and
incorporation/ paid-up ordinary Percentage of
establishment and share capital/  equity attributable
operations registered capital to the Group
Name HMEY/2Y ERTRCALZER AEBEERE Principal activities
£ REXHH RE/EREXZEE BAl TEXH
Mint Capital Assets Management Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 Metal trading
Limited Bk 10,000,000/ 7T and property holding
RTEEEBRBRAF cBEELNEREA
Multilever Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$10 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 10%7T REER
RERGEE/BE
Precious Source International British Virgin Islands/ US$10,000 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 10,000% 7T REZR
EREARBRAR RERGEE/BE
Serrano Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 Motor vehicle trading
Bk 20,000 1T (discontinued operation)
AEEE (BRIELEEH)
Simsen Capital Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 Money lending
AT BREBRAR Bk 1,000 7T HE
Simsen (China) Investment British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 1E REZR
AT (PE)REFRAT] EBRUEHE/BE
Simsen Services Company Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 Management and
Limited BB 10,0007 7 secretarial services
ERRBEERAR ERRMWERS
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
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Simsen International Corporation Limited X717 B & (25%) AR A 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and

incorporation/ paid-up ordinary Percentage of

establishment and share capital/  equity attributable

operations registered capital to the Group
Name HMRY/BY 2 ERAREMEZ AEBEERE Principal activities
£ REXBH BEZF/EHH:%ZISZEE BAl TEXH
Tailor Success Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 100 REER

RERGEE /BB

United Simsen Securities Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 Securities and futures
Limited BB 10,000,00078 7T contracts broking and
RIBEEFERAA trading and provision
of corporate finance
advisory services
J*%&HH“’“A%WE&
EAREM R
REBERRE
United Simsen Asset Management Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 Insurance broking and
Limited B 2,000,000/ 7T consultancy services
RIMEEEERER RE 8 12 B T PR 7
United Simsen Bullion Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Metal broking and trading
RIBEERARA BE 1,000,000% 7 CELRREE
United Simsen Forex Dealers Limited Hong Kong HK$100,010,000 100 Forex contracts broking
RTBEEEERAA BE 100,010,0007 7 and trading
NERNERRESR
United Simsen Global Markets Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 Metal broking and trading
RTBERETEERAR BE 1B tBELEKEE
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

B 55 R AR BT

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

47. T EME R T 2+ 15 (&)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ paid-up ordinary Percentage of
establishment and share capital/  equity attributable
operations registered capital to the Group
Name HMRY/ B ERTRERLZER AEERERK Principal activities
a8 REXHE RE/ERMEFZEE ARl TEXH
Vigour Entertainment (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 9 Entertainment
BEZNREERAF BE 1007 IRE
World Snooker Club 147 Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 75 Snooker operations
ttR147R R EER A7 BA 1,000/ T REH
HEXEECLEER LA People’s RMB3,000,000 60 Mining and
Republic of China AR %3,000,0007T investment holding
mEARLNE RERRERK
ENXBECEBERAT People’s RMB300,000 60 Mining
Republic of China AR 300,000 KE

hE AR EME

* the subsidiary is directly held by the Company.

> statutory audits of these companies are not performed by

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng

Y ZMBARHRARBEERE °

o RERRYIFABEEERTANEBATE
TTEEER
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30 April 2010

—E-FEMA=1A

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

2010
—2-%F

FINANCIAL ASSETS

FREEMT :

Group
AEE
THEE

Financial assets at

fair value through Loans and
profit or loss receivables Total
BAFESA
BREZ BEXRk
TRHEE & U BR X Mt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEL FET
Other long term assets HthRHEE - 2,683 2,683
Accounts receivable JE LA B 3R - 269,945 269,945
Financial assets included in FTATERFIE -
prepayments, deposits and e REMEW
other receivables BRvemEE - 8,601 8,601
Due from associates & i Bt & X B RIE - 630 630
Equity investments at fair value BAFERA
through profit or loss B BAEE 3,282 - 3,282
Bank trust account balances RITEERP &R - 243,211 243,211
Pledged bank deposits BEARITER - 10,628 10,628
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeFEERE - 45528 45,528
3,282 581,226 584,508
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows (continued):

B 55 R AR BT

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

48. RERE D 2 €M T A

(&)

SEA ST ARBRE MAITRAE
BREEMT ()

2010 Group
—B-2HF rEE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES cRAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
REBERARTE
ZEMEE
HK$’000
FHET
Accounts payable FETER SR 307,900
Financial liabilities included T AE AL B BRF
in other payables and accruals EAERAzERARE 9,926
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ FFBERITIEE 150,277
Due to associate JE {51 B &5 2 B SRIB 12
Finance leases payable FET RE & A A 926
Due to minority shareholders RAEWRER 2 FIE 884
Loan from a minority shareholder DERRRE K 654
470,579
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 48. R EHIEI D 2B T A

CATEGORY (continued) (#&)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZENeRTARNREHBATER 2
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as BREENT (B) -
follows (continued):
2009 Group
—ETNF REHE
FINANCIAL ASSETS THEE
Available-
Financial assets at for-sale
fair value through Loans and financial
profit or loss  receivables assets Total
BAYERFA e
BHEEZ Bk 2
tREE JE 18R 3 tREE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Other long term assets EmR#MEE - 6,393 - 6,393
Available-for-sale investments HEEEZRE - - 136 136
Accounts receivable [ U iR X - 83,618 - 83,618
Financial assets included in FABMFE -
prepayments, deposits and e REMEK
other receivables ERzemiE - 4,280 - 4,280
Due from associates JE ek & A BIRIR - 667 - 667
Equity investments at fair value BRATERFA
through profit or loss BaBzRAKRE 35,495 - - 35,495
Bank trust account balances RITELERPER - 148,412 - 148,412
Pledged bank deposits BEBFIER - 10,625 - 10,625
Cash and cash equivalents Re kAL EEER - 58,314 - 58,314
35,495 312,309 136 347,940
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 48. WA B n 2EB T A
CATEGORY (continued) (%)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FHEMem T AN RERETAERZ
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as BREENT (E) :

follows (continued):

2009 Group
—ETNF REHE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES TRAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
REBHRATHE
Zeme s
HK$’000
FHET
Accounts payable JERTER SR 225,098
Financial liabilities included A E At A AR R
in other payables and accruals EAER SRARE 9,404
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ FFBERTTEE 21,213
Finance leases payable JE 1~ Bt & A 4V 766
Due to minority shareholders RAOEWRER Z B 1,281
Loan from a minority shareholder DERRE K 900
258,662
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 48. BE R Bl 2R T A
CATEGORY (continued) (%)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EHEem T ARNREHETER 2

instruments as at the end of the reporting period date are BREENT (B) -
as follows (continued):
Company
VNN
FINANCIAL ASSETS STREE
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
BEXER BERR
FE U BR 7R JrE U BR 3K
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAET
Due from subsidiaries JE WP /B 2 B 5RIB 237,906 151,771
Due from an associate U — BB 2 R B FUE - 5
Financial assets included in STAEMRE FTek
prepayments, deposits, and H b FE AR SR
other receivables CEMEE 3,155 -
Cash and cash equivalents BehReEEER 1,626 78
At end of year NGRS 242,687 151,854
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 48. BB D 2ER T A
CATEGORY (continued) (#8)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial BEMNeMIARRERNETERZ
instruments as at the end of the reporting period date are BREENT (8 :

as follows (continued):

Company
AT
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES TREE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities
at amortised at amortised
cost cost
R R
MAGtEZ RAGTEZ
A Y= TRAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Due to subsidiaries U EIENGIE S 49,623 78,577
Financial liabilities included in F A E Ath AN BR BR &2
other payables and accruals Bt EAZERARE 2,994 2,196
52,617 80,773
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B 355 R AR BT

30 April 2010 —ZE—T4mMA=+H
49. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2: fair value measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)
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30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

49. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued) 49. A {EE#&K (#&)

At as 30 April 2010, the Group held the following financial RZE—ZFNA=+H A£EF
instruments measured at fair value: EUTHRATEFEZEMIA
Assets measured at fair value as 30 April 2010: R-FE—FFMA =+ HENFEL
BCEE:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ £ E£=8 et

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TAET TAT TAT

Equity investments at fair value XA FEFABREZ
through profit or loss BRAKE 3,282 - - 3,282

3,282 - - 3,282

During the year ended 30 April 2010, there were no transfers HE_ZT-ZFNA=THILFE -
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into or out of WEE-EEEF B EAsEBRE
Level 3 fair value measurements. —EAFEFEZEAREL -
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 50. i EREE 2B NR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES BE
The Group’s major financial instruments include investments AEBCZFESHIABERAE
in equity securities, borrowings, accounts receivable and BE - EBE - BUWERRREMERR -
accounts payable. Details of these financial instruments are ZEERMIAZHBR BB TR
disclosed in the respective notes. B e
The main risks arising from the Group’s activities are foreign AEBEEBEA 2T ZRAKAINER
exchange risk, equity price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk & XK{ET%H[&A xRk - 8
and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees MrReERR  EEeR L&
policies for managing each of these risks and they are mﬁi;—?ﬂ e - e T
summarised below.
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK Hh R B
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of an asset HNEE [ B2 ?a J«/( INEETEZ EERAE
and liability denominated in foreign currency will fluctuate {ETE (R SN PE [ R B iy (1 IROR B) 2 [
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s o REH l ZHONERBEAZEER
foreign currency risk primarily arises (i) from sales or Iﬁ()%&%%ﬁubﬁﬁmzmQEEMMM\
purchases by operating units in currencies other than the ZEMEITEE - (\HERAINEER
units’ functional currency, (i) from its leveraged foreign K (i) BINE QB ©
exchange business and (jii) from investing in equity shares
of foreign companies.
The directors consider the foreign currency risk exposure EERE  KEBEMUEM2NEE
to sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other BN BT BEE 2 INER R
than the units’ functional currency is minimal as all of them WMrReE  RERFMEBREHUET
are denominated in USD which is pledged with the Group’s FHE - METEAEE 2 NEEEH
functional currency. For foreign currency risk associated with i o EIEENINEXBE BB 2 INER
the leverage foreign exchange business, they are managed SHAMBPIEERERE YEAZ
and monitored by the relevant department and reported on ] o

a daily basis.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 50. i RMEEBENK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES BUR (48)
(continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (continued) s R B (4E)
Details of financial assets and financial liabilities denominated PANBHEzEMEEREREBER
in foreign currencies as at the end of the reporting period MEHETER ZFBOT

were as follows:

2010 2009

Foreign —E-ZF ZETNF

currency $°000 $'000

S Fr T

Intangible assets BEEE RMB - 412
AR

Interests in associates REE R B2 RMB 739 1,200
ARE

Accounts receivable JE I BR 5K usD 21 2,470
T

Prepayments, deposits and BRHE FJek usD - 209
other receivables Hth FE U BR 5K e

RMB 20 30
ARE

CAD - 361
i

Equity investments at fair value BERATEFABERER CAD - 4,992
through profit or loss ZRAERE mr

Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEER RMB 4 139
ARE

Other payables and accruals Hi A RR R ER &R RMB (8) (12)
ARE

Due to minority shareholders RAOERER 2 FIE RMB - (50)
ARE
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

180

(continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end

of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the USD and RMB (2009: USD, RMB and CAD) exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s

profit before tax and the Group’s equity.

50. W EEEE 2B HNR

R (&)

ShEE B ()

TRETRN S B

TREREMAH

WERRFETEZERT - AEER
B AT R R AR B A S E TR AR
H(CETAE £ ARKEM
T ER Y A BEERD Y BB -

2010 —E-FF Increase/decrease Increase/decrease
in profit before tax in equity
BRBLAT S F [N
&,/ wW #m,/ WL
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FEx

If Hong Kong Dollar weakens/ BEBTAELRE
strengthens against USD by 5% FHE5% 8 8

If Hong Kong Dollar weakens/ EEATRARERE/

strengthens against RMB by 5% FHE5% 77 77
2009 —ETNF Increase/decrease  Increase/decrease
in profit before tax in equity
B 750 Al i A R
w0 2,/ 8
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

If Hong Kong Dollar weakens/ ERTHETRE/
strengthens against USD by 5% FE5% 1,031 1,031

If Hong Kong Dollar weakens/ ERATHARKERE/

strengthens against RMB by 5% FE5% 97 97

If Hong Kong Dollar weakens/ BERTEMTRE/
strengthens against CAD by 5% FH1E5% 1,718 1,718



ANNUAL REPORT 2009/2010 —2& A, —E T FF1f

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 50. M EMEREZBENR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES BE (&)

(continued)
EQUITY PRICE RISK

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equity
securities decreases as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss.

The directors of the Company manage the exposure by
closely monitoring the portfolio of equity investments at fair
value through profit and loss.

During the year ended 30 April 2010, the Group'’s listed
investments are listed on the SEHK (2009: SEHK and TSX
Venture Exchange) and are valued at quoted market prices
at the end of reporting period.

The market equity indices for the following stock exchanges,
at the close of business of the nearest trading day in the
year to the end of the reporting period, and their respective
highest and lowest points during the year were as follows:

IR R EKE R

BRERRRERAESZ QX FER
REEEBOKT LA EHEELRE
B 2 Ekg o AN EE S EEA
BAZE DR RR A EF ABEER
ZBEAERE AR RER R

KNATESBFBEYERIEAFLE
AEBTEZBRAREHEESEERERRE -

BE_T-TFMA=THILFE
$El2tm&:§#%ﬁ§éﬁﬁ(_2@%@h
FBXAEZRZBFIFMEIE
) £ WIRRE S A R TR
BfHE -

! &iﬁﬁfﬁ%% BELEZEEAFE
REBEXERKBERE - TIEHFX
%ﬁﬁZhﬁ?H?ﬁ&ﬁiW%%%ﬁ&%
EEWT -

30 April High/low 30 April High/low
2010 2010 2009 2009
—2-%TF C—B-BF C"TTNHF C"TITNF
MA=tH B/E% MmA=+A &/ B
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index ~ &8 — B4 EH 21,109 22,944/ 15,521 26,387/
15,521 10,676

Canada - S&P/TSX Venture ME A — S&P/TSX Venture
Composite Index Composite Index N/A N/A 1,009 2,735/
TEA TEA 679
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

EQUITY PRICE RISK (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every

5% change in the fair values of the equity investments, with

all other variables held constant and before any impact on

tax, base on their carrying amounts at the end of the

reporting period.

R (&)

REEKER (&)

50. W EEEE 2B HNR

MTRETNEMEREMESRRFTIEZR

REtEBRAZ &R

HRER 2 REE  HRAKRER
FESRES 2 FRE -

2010 —E-ZF Increase/decrease  Increase/decrease
Carrying amount in profit before tax in equity
BB AT B
REE #m/ W #m/ md
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TR TET

Investments listed in: RTSIE EmcRE
Hong Kong - Held-for-trading &8 — #{EEE 3,282 164 164
2009 “EENE Increase/decrease Increase/decrease
Carrying amount in profit before tax in equity
B BRI _RA
FEE #&m/ mo B/ e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT FHT

Investments listed in: RTHE E g
Hong Kong - Held-for-trading &% — #{EEE 3,458 178 173
Canada - Held-for-trading MeX —HERE 32,037 1,602 1,602

INTEREST RATE RISK F = [ Bz

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market AEEMSMNEEFH o RAREERE

interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing

bank borrowings and short term floating rate bank loans to

fund the margin financing facilities of the securities brokerage

business that are typically prime-based.

For short term floating rate bank loans, the principal risk

lies with the interest rate difference between the interbank

rate and the best lending rate. The Group mitigates the risk
by monitoring the interest rate gap between the short term
bank loans and margin financing facilities and revises the

margin financing rate if necessary.

R B R IT B RIS T B AR
PITER  BRAEAREENEHE
CESEREE I FRRABREE

RAEMFBMNERTERMS T8
R AR R 337 8 B & B BB KA &

FzMERZR - AEEBEEEREY
RITERRAIRBMEBREZNEEZHE

R B
AR -

W RFERAEFRR
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivatives
instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point (2009:
50 basis point) increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2009: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended
30 April 2010 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$439,000 (2009: decrease/increase by approximately
HK$345,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate interest bearing
bank loans and short term borrowings.

CREDIT RISK

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the board of directors of the
Company has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts due from clients, dealers
and borrowers. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debtor at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
provision for losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 —ZE—ZFMA=+H

50. B ERERE2BNK

BR (88)
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MEREBMEE ° 2 IIRERN K
THRTERHAEEZERTAR
EEAFEDNAREERE - ERNAMEIEE
BABERM XA - JhE LN
SR DBOEER (T NEF : 50EE
m)  WHKKREEBYHAN XA EREE
B2 R -

R REI, S AB0EES (ZEEAN
& : 50fEIEEL) - MATHE HE b & e
NE AR EEHE T —FF 0 A
= tREFEZREEFERLD
I0494389,0008 T (ZEFENFE B
1 AN#9345,0005 7T) © Ik ThF B /i
RAEEAZZBBRTER R EHE
B2 R =R BT -

FERR

AEEREZEERRES AR H
FHAREBITEBNEGRCER TR
BEZEMAR ZFEERGAVHK
RRARFI 2 BREE - /B EERR
MEREK  ARBIZEEFEDERE—
FREBTEEERE FEMERE
E IR Fr 2 BFX - AREIRBEIRAE B
WEP XZBARERAZBE
oo Wi AREREREHETE
g el B ERIER A Z AT El £ 58
PARELR /&N AU [ 2 BB 1 R 50 2 R
BEEERE -t E - ARARES
RARAEEZEERBREKRERD

183



J Simsen International Corporation Limited X717 B & (25%) AR A 7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R B o

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFHA=+H

50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 50. i EREE 2B NR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES BUR (88)
(continued)
CREDIT RISK (continued) EERE (&
At the end of the reporting period, there are no significant RSB TER - BREBRERD
concentrations of credit risk with respect to the receivables, MELZRER WEWERITEEKR
as they are widely dispersed over a large number of clients. FEESEYRRE R-ZTTNFMOA=
At 30 April 2009, the Group has certain concentrations of TH ARTEEREZDE (BEREF
credit risk as 23% of the Group’s accounts receivable were PR I EAE ) M E R X2 23% 2K B AR
due from the Group’s largest customer, within the trading £ H IZE—K%Q}E' : $’§ EHBEETE
segment which operation was discontinued during the year. ERBBRER ZIE)
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure AEEREEKERZEERR 2 FF
to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are disclosed MEBEBEEN T BREMTE24 -

in note 24 to the financial statements.

LIQUIDITY RISK R B 1 L B

Internally generated cash flows and bank borrowings are NHEEEs2REMERBITEERAR
the general sources of funds to finance the operations of SEEXEBES 2 —MIKIR - REEK
the Group. Majority of the Group’s banking facilities are HORITRERFBINEGFTEIRET
subject to floating rates and are renewable annually. The FEH AEETHRITETEES
Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure AR - ATEIRE B B 5901 75 & JR LA FE
it has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial NEGBEERETEANRSEFE
obligations and compliance with the statutory requirements EBZEAEER  c AEEE R BB
applying to various licensed activities. The Group aims to BUESHHACEREEER  ER
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit BevBEH  WABRWZRITE
lines available and sufficient bank deposits to meet its short FoNENEHREFE - AEE
term cash requirements. The Group’s liquidity risk nBERREE BB REEEAR
management includes making available standby banking TRERDHES KR

facilities and diversifying the funding sources.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

—E2-FFMA=TH

50. I ERMEEZEHNR
BR (48)

BN ()

REBEERIORFTRANKE - AKH

the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual R EHETER  SRaE 228

undiscounted payments, was as follows: BRET :

Group rEE 2010
“E-%F
Less than 3 to less than 1to5 Over
Ondemand ~ 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
SR =ZfiRE
REX ZER T=fAW -E5F  RENE b
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
Accounts payable RS 285,936 21,964 - - - 307,900
Other payables and accruals EhERETRENER 9,926 - - - - 9,926
Due to an associate Ef—FBERFANE 12 - - - - 12
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ stEHITEE 1,583 141,349 1,061 6,020 264 150,277
Finance leases payable ERBERD - 124 374 789 - 1,287
Due to minority shareholders ROBREZFE 884 - - - - 884
Loan from a minority shareholder D ERR & - - - 654 - 654
298,341 163,437 1,435 7,463 264 470,940
2009
ZERNEF
Lessthan 3 to less than 1105 Over
On demand 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
SR ZfAZE

BEX =@R TzZEAR  -ERFE  AFNE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
Accounts payable ERER 195,675 29,423 - - - 225,008
Other payables and accruals EERRIREER 9,404 - - - - 9,404
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ stEHITEE 8,445 1,246 3,828 5,866 1,828 21,213
Finance leases payable ERBERD - 67 209 490 - 766
Due to minority shareholders ROBBRE 2 FE 1,281 - - - - 1,281
Loan from a minority shareholder P ERREEH - - - 900 - 900
214,805 30,736 4,087 7,256 1,828 258,662
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

50. W EEEE 2B HNR

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES BUR (1)
(continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (continued) B L B ()
Company NG 2010
“E-%%
Less than 3 to less than 1t05 Over
Ondemand  3months 12 months years 5 years Total
SR ZfRE
REX =R T-fAR -ZLE RENE -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEx ThEx ThEx ThEx ThEx Thn
Due to subsidiaries RHBRAFE 49,623 - - - - 49,623
Other payables and accruals BRI R ENER 2,994 - - - - 2,994
52,617 - - - - 52,617
2009
“EENE
Less than 3 to less than Ttob Over
On demand 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
SR ZfARZE
BEX =R tZEAR —ZRE  RENE @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL ThL
Due to subsidiaries RHBLRAZE 78,577 - - - - 78,577
Other payables and accruals EERERREGER 2,196 - - - - 2,196
80,773 - - - - 80,773
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. In
addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group licensed by the
SFC are obliged to meet the regulatory liquid capital
requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (“FRR”).

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns with higher
levels of borrowings and the security afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions. For
licensed subsidiaries, the directors of the Company and the
corresponding responsible officers closely monitors their
liquidity position to ensure each of them maintain liquid
capital level adequate to support the activities level with
sufficient buffer to accommodate the increase in liquidity
requirements arising from potential increases in business
activities. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended
30 April 2009 and 30 April 2010.

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFFMA=+H

50. I ERMEEZEHNR

BR (88)

EXREHE

AEEEAER 2T BRIR - SR
AEBERBERLZEZR I NEREBRZ
BERBBEE  USKEXRBLEE
RERREE- U BEEERR
BEZARBETHEARANAR
HFhHE (FBER) KA (T BER
BRADZRBHESHTE °

AEBERREBERRER  NERSE
EKFRAIESRE SRR ERERE
TR E AN PR R 2 RIE 2 B 5
T YREEERREZEHTHEN
RBETRHE - EMELRM
5 ARREERMEBAEARTY
BRREFRAZRBETNIR - BIR
SHMBARLRFEARIDE K
o UXBEBRERERPEETIA
ENREEBEERE 2 FHEERE A
HZRBESHREM RBE-F
ENFHUA=TEE-Z—FTFMA
ZTHELESE  AEELTEHENE
BZBAR  BRIEFELESD -

R ER o
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

188

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio, which is net debt divided by adjusted capital.
For this purpose, The Group’s policy is to maintain the net
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio below 50%. Net debt includes
bank overdraft, interest-bearing bank borrowings, but
excluding short-term bank borrowings that were secured
by a charge over securities subscribed under initial public
offering and margin deposit as required for initial public
offering, finance leases payable, due to minority
shareholders, loan from a minority shareholder, less cash
and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity, less unaccrued
proposed dividends. The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratios
as at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50. W EEEE 2B HNR

BUR (8)

EXxEE (&

AREBERBESFALLEHEERL
REREN - BHFRBLRHBEN
Lo R AE R F B R AL A EE AN
Hoptms  AEBZBREEE
FHEM F R EREBEER L REL0%
AT - BEBFREBERITEX - 5 E
RITEE (ETRIERYRITEE - Z
EETIABERAREERBESTR
RZFBERERRREEREZFR
WEEEM)  BANREMELY  ROB
R ZFRBEAR D BBRERER - RHR
EREAELEEBERERBEARRTRE
e KABEANBREBAZ FABHEK
By BAEREZERE - RREH
BTl - EFFRUEARERL
T

Group rEH
2010 2009
—E-2F ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERIRITIEE 9,277 21,213
Finance leases payable FE B E M A 926 766
Due to minority shareholders KB R 2 KA 884 1,281
Loan from a minority shareholder DVEREER 654 900
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and &l : IR& NS SEHIER
pledged bank deposits RBEBIRITFER (56,156) (68,939)
Net debt B FE - -
Equity attributable to owners of RArHEB ANELER
the Company 208,669 216,707
Less: Proposed dividends B BERE - -
Adjusted capital KA ER 208,669 216,707
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FEE AR
B & 0% 0%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

51. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

52

PERIOD

On 18 August 2010, the Group entered into an agreement
with Checkmate Advisors Limited, an independent third
party, to dispose of 49% equity interest of Sun Finance
Company Limited, being entire equity interest of Sun Finance
Company Limited owned by the Group, at a total
consideration of HK$9,300,000. Further details of the
disposal are set out in an announcement of the Company
dated 18 August 2010.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

In prior years, administrative and other operating expenses
included brokerage and commission expenses paid. In the
current year, the Group has revised the presentation of
administrative and other operating expenses by separating
the brokerage and commission expenses from
administrative and other operating expenses in the
consolidated income statement in order to provide more
relevant information in respect of the Group’s operations.

51.

52.

B RS RAR M EE

30 April 2010 ZZE—ZFFMA=+H

BEMRER

RZE—ZEFNA+NB REFEH
— 43837 8 = 5 Checkmate Advisors
Limited 7] 32 7% + DA H & K5 B FR BF
BHERARA9%R AR (BREER
RGEBRYBER QRS 223
AiEwm) - R E /9,300,000 7T °
ERHEEEZE—TFBHRER
ARARAZ—ZTFNATNBZA

A e

L R B

RBEFE  TREEMEERTE
BENBLEEAESHAX - RAFE -
AEBETITRIAMBEERST 22
TR BERE SR EERAE
RXETREEMEERI RO -
MRREEZAKEZECRBAER -
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52. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 52. Lt R EE (4])
(continued)
The effects of the change in the presentation of revenue WAZIAREHH 2 EDZ BB A
have been accounted for retrospectively with comparative R MEBHBELEEY - XFEZ
figures restated. The specific line items affected are as BHEBBWT :
follows:
The Group
xE
2009
—ETNF
HK$’000
FHET
Decrease in administrative and other TR N HoAth & 38 B SR
operating expenses (29,570)
Increase in brokerage and commission e MRS R M
expenses 29,570
Effect on loss for the year HFEEBBE IR -
Effect on basic and diluted loss per share HARRQ AR E(GEFRER
attributable to ordinary equity holders of M EEB T E
the Company —
These changes do not have any impact on the results of ZEEPTSHAEBRAFE LA
the Group in respect of the current and prior years. TFECHEEEEFNTE -
Save as disclosed above, certain comparative amounts have bR EXPTIEEEEIN - BT HRERED

been reclassified to conform with the current period’s EFOE UFEAEREZENG
presentation. % °
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority FNX AAEBSIAERKRFE 2 EEH2E
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted & * BER D EREEREE - EEEC

from the published audited financial statements. HlEE s B ZABRE -
RESULTS E 47
Year ended 30 April
BENA=THLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

—B-8F _TTNF _—TTN\F _TTLF _—TTRF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TET TET TET TET

Turnover: L
Continuing operations FECEER 211,527 13,112 157,335 124,445 173,120
Discontinued operations 2 4% [ 48 & ¥ 7 3,604 18,705 - - -
215,131 31,817 157,335 124,445 173,120
Profit/(loss) before tax: BBATEF (B58)
Continuing operations FEICEET 1 (179,773 (50,903) 64,087 (86,131)
Discontinued operations &% [ 48 & ¥ 7% (1,540) (33,251) - 5,203 232,135
(1,539)  (213,024) (50,903 69,290 146,004
Income tax FrigRile,/ (M%)
credit/(expenses) 294 (21) (2,073) (38) (1,840)
Profit/(loss) before B D 20 AR B 2 A
minority interests swFl, (&) (1,245) (213,045 (52,976) 69,252 144,164
Minority interests LERRER (2,449) (1,422) 101 (49) 49
Profit/(loss) attributable A% 3R &5
to shareholders wH S (E18) (3,694)  (214,467) (52,875) 69,203 144,213
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY EE EERVBRERES

INTERESTS

As at 30 April

REA=+A
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-Zf —TTHhEF ZTEN\EF —ZTLF ZTERF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FTERr FHET FHET FHET FHET
Non-current assets FERBEE 86,142 132,235 187,713 51,685 52,638
Current assets MEEE 597,836 349,085 530,798 410,523 296,913
Total assets BERE 683,978 481,320 718,511 462,208 349,551
Current liabilities mEBAE (464,186)  (251,716) (267,907) (150,031) (102,535)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (11,123) (12,897) (14,444) (14,865) (14,597)
Total liabilities BERE (475,309)  (264,613) (282,351) (164,896) (117,132)
Minority interests LERRERS - (10,342) (9,810) (10) (225)

208,669 206,365 426,350 297,302 232,194

192



Simsen Intern
Simsen Internati
Simsen Internation
Simsen International
Simsen International
Simsen International
Simsen International
Simsen International
Simsen International
Simsen International
Simsen International
Simsen International Simsen International
Simsen International™ St

ational Sims




